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Chairman’s
Statement
E/FHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
pleased to present to shareholders the
annual report of VST Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2010.

FABRRESTORRMAREZEAERE
RARTAQXANEREMBAR (KB AKEH])
BZE-_Z-ZTF+-_A=+-BLEEZFH-

In 2010, we have continued to grow our business and strengthen our
relationships with our vendors, customers and bankers. We have continued
to widen our product range, enlarge our distribution network and improve our
operational efficiency.

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2010 was
approximately HK$26,212,600,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December
2009: approximately HK$19,706,000,000). Gross profit for the year ended 31
December 2010 amounted to approximately HK$1,152,500,000 (for the nine
months ended 31 December 2009: approximately HK$962,700,000). Net
profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to approximately
HK$408,100,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009:
approximately HK$319,800,000). Basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2010 amounted to approximately HK29.41 cents (for the nine
months ended 31 December 2009: approximately HK23.86 cents) per share.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE (H)

The Group has achieved another set of excellent results for the year. KREBEEBE—FWME TS ABBHKE -
Leveraging on our diversified products and strong distribution network, the BN E PN Z Tt EREE LR AN D
Group further improved its product range and expanded its distribution 454948 @ AEBEE —SELEZBEREX
channels in Asia Pacific. The Group has strong distribution networks with over S5 K2 D5 E B - A E B N6EBR KX (B 1E T
24,000 business partners in six countries, including China, Thailand, Malaysia, R BREE MK B RIERE
Singapore, Indonesia and the Philippines, and our businesses have also &) # A 18 A &) 5 5 48 48 & £ #8 18 24,0001
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markets to provision of enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure, training, EmiHZEARMREROHEAEREZ AEAF
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREE (B

PROSPECTS

The usage of IT products continued to penetrate all the markets in which we
have operations, in both urban as well as rural areas. Therefore, we expect all
the markets to continue to grow in 2011. This growth is likely to continue in
the long run. In the China market, as the education level and affluence of the
rural population continues to improve, the usage of IT products will become
more important. This will foster significant growth in our business especially in
rural China. Market penetration of computers in Mainland China is still low
with tremendous potential for growth. The Group plans to continue to
strengthen its foothold in the Mainland China market. Capitalising on our
expanding product mix, our comprehensive sales network and dynamic
marketing strategy, the Group will continue to grow consistently year on year.
In addition, it will also accelerate development of markets in Southeast Asia
thereby create a new growth driver. With our experienced management team,
the Group will continue to look for opportunities to work with world famous IT
suppliers and continue to expand our product mix and sales channels so to
achieve excellent results.

Lastly, | would like to thank our shareholders for their loyal support for the
Group. | would also like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our staff for their whole-hearted devotion and passion
towards their duties and to thank our Board members and business partners
for their trust and support. We are confident in overcoming the challenges
ahead and will strive our best to maximize returns for our shareholders.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2010 was
approximately HK$26,212,600,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December
2009: approximately HK$19,706,000,000).

The Group has shown strong growth in the distribution segment, where
demand for notebooks, tablets, CPUs and hard disks have continued to rise.
In the enterprise systems segment, we have had robust growth as a result of
higher sales of networking hardware and servers due to increase in corporate
[T spending.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$1,152,500,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December
2009 amounted to approximately HK$962,700,000). Operating profit for the
year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to approximately HK$54 1,000,000
(for the nine months ended 31 December 2009 amounted to approximately
HK$448,000,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2010
amounted to approximately HK$408,100,000 (for the nine months ended 31
December 2009 amounted to approximately HK$319,800,000).
earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
approximately HK29.41 cents (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009
amounted to approximately HK23.86 cents) per share.

Basic

The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order to
provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified product
lines now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
Dell, IBM, Acer, Sun Microsystems, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Buffalo, Hitachi
and many more.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BB W R (&)

Prospects

With bright industry outlook for our core Distribution and Enterprise IT
businesses and projected double digit growth for our markets in China and
South East Asia, the Group expects to perform well in the coming year. We
will focus on emerging technologies such as tablets and smart phones to
further expand our product portfolio. The demand for mobile device
accessories is also growing fast and we will further develop this area in our
product portfolio to take advantage of this growth. With the expertise of our
experienced management team and extensive and diversified product lines
and distribution network, we are in an excellent position to continue to focus
on the potential growth of the Group. The Group aims to achieve consistent
and healthy operating margin and maximise shareholders’ return.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
approximately HK$1,015,300,000 (31 December 2009: approximately
HK$450,800,000).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$1,773,400,000 (31 December 2009: approximately
HK$1,359,700,000). The gearing ratio, calculated as borrowings less cash
and cash equivalents divided by total equity, was 0.33 as at 31 December
2010 (31 December 2009: 0.48).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$7,165,200,000 (31 December 2009: approximately
HK$5,882,500,000) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$4,901,500,000 (31 December 2009: approximately HK$3,955,900,000).
The current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets
by the total current liabilities, was approximately 1.46 times as at 31
December 2010 (31 December 2009: approximately 1.49 times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from approximately
HK$1,642,500,000 as at 31 December 2009 to approximately
HK$2,133,900,000 as at 31 December 2010.
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars and Thailand baht.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases as set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has 2,243 (31 December 2009: 2,205)
full time employees.

The Group remunerated its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible employees
by reference to the Group performance as well as individual performance.
Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement schemes. The net
total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$375,800,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December
2009: approximately HK$293,000,000). The Group also provides training
courses or seminars to its staff.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEEERRS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company has complied
with the code provisions on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) except for code provision A.2.1 which is explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

The Board

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jialin

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Mao Xianggian

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(Vice Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ni Zhenwei Member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee
Chairman of Audit Committee and

member of Remuneration Committee

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter

Mr. Li Wei Chairman of Remuneration Committee and

member of Audit Committee
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (E)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Li Jialin, one of the founders of the Group, currently holds the offices of
Chairman and CEO. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and CEO in the same person will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Directors and the management of Company and
considers that this structure will enable the Group to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

Each Director of the Company has entered a service contract with the
Company and renewable for successive years of one year each commencing
from the day immediately after the expiry of the current term of the service
contract unless and until terminated by either party by not less than three
months’ notice in writing. Under the service agreements, the initial annual
emoluments of each executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable
to each of them will be reviewed by the Board each year.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Tay Eng Hoe, Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William and Mr. Li Wei will retire from office
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The Board recommended the re-
appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company’s circular contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Training for Directors

Each of the newly appointed Directors receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
and the business and market chances to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.
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Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2010 is set out below:

FERRR
EEHEBANEGZNH

HE -2 ZF+_BA=Z+—HILEFER"
EFHEEFR2BAHINOT

Attendance/Number HFE BT
Directors of Meetings E= SEXHY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin 5/5 FEMEE 5/5
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 5/5 BBk FISE A& 5/5
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 5/5 FREFEE 5/5
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau 5/5  BREMNEE 5/5
Mr. Mao Xianggian 4/5  EMATEE 4/5
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Ni Zhenwei 5/5 fRiRE%RE 5/5
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 55 MREFEL 5/5
Mr. Li Wei 5/5 FESAE 5/5
Practices and Conduct of Meetings S aS el

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are served
to all Directors in accordance with the CG Code before the meetings.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.
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According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will
be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Company also has established a written guideline on terms no less
exacting terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance by the employees was noted by the Company.

Board Committees

The Board has established two committees, namely the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are available upon request.

The members of each Board committee are independent non-executive
Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board committee
is set out under the headline of “Composition” of “The Board” of the
Corporate Governance report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERRSE (E)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors
(including one independent non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2010 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, and the re-appointment of the external auditors.

BEREEY

EREERERR-ABUFNTESR(BE —
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The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetingsis setout &K ELHEEREZES SR BRI MO T :
below:
Attendance/ HES

Number of Meetings BIEBERE
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Chairman) 2/2 RESEL(FE) 2/2
Mr. Ni Zhenwei 2/2 15% e e 2/2
Mr. Li Wei 2/2 TEEE 2/2
There is no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may i (E A Al e WA DR VB R L N EE
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going EBEASREZEATHEES MM -
concern.
There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee ¥ E€HEXZE 8 € 3t /N EZ AN 2 B8
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external ZE1{F - B F KR EL EE R H L

auditors.
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The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2010 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration of the executive
Directors and for fixing the remuneration packages of all the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
ensuring the remuneration packages are sufficient to attract and retain the
Directors for running the Company successfully; avoiding over-paying and
that no Directors or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration. The remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets during the year for reviewing
the policy, structure and related matters of the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the human
resources data and making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration Committee will consult the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer about their recommendations on
remuneration policy, structure and related matters of remuneration packages.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2010 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of the
directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market level
of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to be
made.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting
is set out below:

EXRBHFEFHZEGEERZZBRAEIWT

Attendance/ HE

Number of Meetings HEITEBERHY

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) 11 FREEE(EE) 1/1
Mr. Ni Zhenwei 11 RIRELRE 1/1
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 1/1 [5R E 23 4 + 1/1

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report”.

The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$3,720,000 and HK$945,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets, and
reviewing the effectiveness of such on a semi-annual basis through the Audit
Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management.
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The management of the Company is responsible for establishing the Group’s
internal control framework, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The internal control framework also
provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic independent reviews on the
operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and risks,
develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified risks,
and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function as
well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.

Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner. To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.vst.com.hk, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.

According to the amendments of the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January
2009, all resolutions proposed at shareholders’ meeting of listed issuers will
be voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 49, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. He is also
the director of VST Group Limited (BVI) and VST
Computers (H.K.) Limited, both are the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Li was also the Chairman and
non-executive Director of ECS Holdings Limited
(*ECS”) from 2008 to September 2010, a subsidiary
of the Company, which is a public listed company
on the Main Board of the Singapore Stock

Exchange. He is responsible for the overall management and strategic
positioning of the Group. Mr. Li graduated from Tsinghua University of the
People’s Republic of China with a Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983
and a Master Degree in Management Engineering in 1986.

Mr. TAY Eng Hoe, aged 59, is the Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company. He
jointed the Company in January 2008. He is also the
Non-executive Chairman of ECS and the Director of
ECS ICT Berhad, an associate of the Company,
which is a public listed company on the Main Board
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. He is the
founder of ECS Group and brings with him more
than 25 years of experience in the IT business. In
2005, Mr. Tay was conferred the Public Services

Medal by the President of the Republic of Singapore in recognition of his
public services to Singapore. He holds a Bachelor degree in Science (Honours)
from the La Trobe University and a Master degree in Business Administration
from the University of Melbourne.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 39, is the
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Ong is also the non-executive Director
of ECS. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics
from University College London and a Master Degree
in Analysis, Design & Management of Information
Systems from the London School of Economics and
Political Science. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ong served in a senior
position at PricewaterhouseCoopers and has extensive working experience in
London and Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 41, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the
United States of America. Mr. Chan has over 15
years of experience in personal computer and
semiconductor industry. Mr. Chan is currently the
Vice President of sales of VST Computers (H.K.)
Limited, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Prior to joining the Company in May 2005,
Mr. Chan served as the Distribution Director of Advanced Micro Devices and
was in charge of the distribution business in China and Hong Kong.

Mr. MAO Xianggian, aged 45, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
was appointed as acting group Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of ECS in March
2010 and May 2010 respectively. He is also the
Chief Executive Officer of ECS Technology (China)
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. He has more
than 20 years experience in China’s IT industry. Mr.
Mao holds a Bachelor and a Master Degree both in
Mechanical Engineering from the Tian Jin University.
Mr. Mao also holds an Executive MBA (EMBA) from the China Europe
International Business School. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mao served
as the Senior Vice President of Digital China Holdings Limited (3 #1712 A%
AR/A7]) (“DC Holdings” and as a Director (Vice President) of Digital China
Technology Limited (1#/NE#ERIEREBRAF) (“DC Technology”)
simultaneously and was in charge of the distribution business in both DC
Holdings and DC Technology.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
BEERAFAMERRE (&)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NI Zhenwei, aged 74, has taught in Tsinghua
University for more than 38 years. Mr. Ni graduated
from Tsinghua University in 1959, majoring in
mechanical engineering. Since then, he taught and
conducted research activities in Tsinghua University.
In 1987, Mr. Ni obtained his qualification as an
associate researcher in Tsinghua University. He
retired in 1996. Mr. Ni was appointed by the Group
in June 2004 as an independent non-executive
Director. He is also a non-executive Director of Sino
Oil and Gas Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He also serves as a member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. CHAN Po Fun Peter BBS, MBE, JP, FHKICPA,
FCPA (Aust.), aged 89, practised accountancy in
Hong Kong for 60 years. He has a doctorate in
Offshore Petroleum Technology and Modern
Chinese Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society
for Underwater Technology. Dr. Chan is a trustee of
Hong Kong Shue Yan University (also as its
Research Professor) and the United College of
Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was the
Chairman of the Kowloon Stock Exchange, a
founding Director of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited and has served
three terms as the Chairman of the former Hong Kong Federation of Stock
Exchanges. Dr. Chan has been appointed by the Group since April 2005 as
an independent non-executive Director. He is also an independent non-
executive Director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited, Chuang’s China
Investments Limited and Chuang’s Consortium International Limited, all are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He also serves as the Chairman of
Audit Committee and a member of Remuneration Committee of the
Company.

Mr. LI Wei, aged 56, was educated in the PRC,
Germany and Australia. He has over 20 years of
experience in establishing and operating businesses
in Asia, particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li
has previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li has
been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2007. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration committee
and a member of Audit Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
BEERAFAMERRE (&)

Company Secretary REIMWE

Mr. CHOW Yiu Tat, aged 44, is the financial RBBEXE 445 AR AW FHE KRR A
controller and the company secretary of the #MZ BEASBHMETELEE RWE
Company and is responsible for the overall = - 1% #F A& % B University of Lincolnshire &
financial and accounting and secretarial matters of ~ Humberside#d ¥ €@ 5t 22 + 847 o [ B E
the Group. He holds a Bachelor Degree in ®He:tfiAedreEREEetiaee
Business Accounting from University of B #R—AANFELAMBEARER -
Lincolnshire & Humberside in United Kingdom. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and also an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants. He joined the Group in July 1999.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWRS

The directors (the “Directors”) of VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the distribution of information technology (“IT”) products
and provision of enterprise systems and IT services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 8 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2010 represented
approximately 7.6% (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009:
approximately 7.2%) of the Group’s total turnover, and the combined total of
the five largest customers accounted for approximately 11.1% (for the nine
months ended 31 December 2009: approximately 11.0%) of the Group’s total
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2010.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2010
represented approximately 32.2% (for the nine months ended 31 December
2009: approximately 39.2%) of the Group’s total purchases, and the
combined total of the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
64.0% (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009: approximately 67.5%)
of the Group’s total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2010.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

e VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010

BEERAERAR(ARAD 2EE(EF))
RARAREARBREME 2B (GBI RE
BBz FTF+_A=+t—HLFE
ZEBRRBECIHEERER

ARRR—HREZERAR - HNB AR X
ZREEAMBRTEAMRMRDERDH AR
HECERBZRERABZRS -

ARAIMBRRAFBEHR Y HRERMES -

TREFREER

HE_Z—ZTF+_A=+—HLEFE &
AREFIEAREEBEETENTH(HE-ZZ
NFE+ZA=+—HIENEA: H72%) M
AABEPZAEHBEEAERREBEEZS —
TFE+ A+ BULEFEAEEEN11.1%
(BHEZZEZhF+ZA=+—HLEAER:
#4711.0%) °

N BHEZZE—ZTFF+_A=+—HLF
EzaABEAMLHAEERRBEENI2%
(BHE-_ZTZAE+-_A=+—BILt @A :
#130.2%) MAAEEE Z A HBEELEAE
ERBE_ZT—ZF+-_A=+—HLLEE
BB BN640% (BE_TTNF+_A=
T—HIEAMEA : £967.5%) °

EE REZBBEATHBEEMAEAARN
RAAE% A £ 2 R RHEMBR R ER £
XAt T BHEAREF P EE TS -



Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 46.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2010 (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009:
Nil).

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2010 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 48 and note 16 to the financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
14 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$267,600,000 (31 December 2009:
approximately HK$218,300,000). In addition, the Company’s share premium
account as at 31 December 2010, in the amount of approximately
HK$774,200,000 (31 December 2009: approximately HK$774,200,000), may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEERE(E)

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 148.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2010.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2010 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Mao Xianggian

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ni Zhenwei
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter
Mr. Li Wei

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
Tay Eng Hoe, Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William and Mr. Li Wei will retire by rotation
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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The Company confirms that it has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
the Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

The executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company for a term of one year and renewable for successive years of one
year each commencing from the day immediately after the expiry of their
current term of service agreement, unless terminated by not less than 3
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director are fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed by the Board but
subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting
as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2010 or at any time during the year under
review.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 22 to 25.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEERE(E)

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors R -ZZE—ZTF+_-_/=+—H AR FESE
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or KT AAE N A A Al s (A HEBEE (T &
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the B &8 %5 & Bi S &6 (BB A B 5 571 %) ([FH
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of & ER & 161 1) 8 XVEB) 2 i 1D ~ 1B (0 sk &
the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to the BB 5T HEBERIEBHF R EEHI EXVIE
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock & SO HWEMEARARALREBHAERIFE
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including AEl((BRAD 2= RkEE (BEREFE
interests and/or short positions of which they were taken or deemed to have # LEEGIZEXEIER R BERB 2R
under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required to be entered in the N/ HEA)N HBLAKRRAREZS K
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or  Hi & 1§l 55 352 1‘m§ﬁ2i"fuaﬂﬁ&‘$ﬁ BEmR
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange  BIIZE #1& A A BRI ERIEET
pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:
(@) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (@) M A2 3 K%M K& HERK G
Company FE &&=
Approximate percentage of
Name of Number and issued share capital of
Director Capacity class of securities the Company
HARATE BT
BEEH®SF 54 EHHERER BRZHBHED
Mr. Li Jialin Beneficial owner 55,146,000 ordinary shares 4.38%
Long position
FEMEE EmEAA 55,146,000 % & 18 I%
A
Interest of a controlled 241,500,000 ordinary shares 19.18%
corporation Long position (Note 1)
REGDEE R 241,500,000 f% & i@ A%
&B& (Kat1)
Family interest 166,000,000 ordinary shares 13.19%
Long position (Note 2)
KIEAE = 166,000,000 % & 38 i
&B& (Kit2)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Beneficial owner 208,000 ordinary shares 0.02%
Long position
TRETEE EnfEA 208,000 % 3% 3@ %
o)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

&

EEHE (&)

Approximate percentage of

Name of Number and issued share capital of
Director Capacity class of securities the Company
HAERARE BT
BEENZ 56 EHHERER BRAEZBHNE DL
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Beneficial owner 5,000,000 ordinary share options 0.40%
Long position
i e ERnfEA 5,000,000 & & ¥ fx 45 Ak 1
®BE
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter Beneficial owner 640,000 ordinary shares 0.05%
Long position
BRE S+ ERnfEA 640,000 % & 38 fi%
®BE
Notes Bt et -
1. 241,500,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire 1. K A A 22415000008 A% 7 BL&L

issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his
spouse, Madam Liu Li.

2. 166,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Madam Liu Li, the
spouse of Mr. Li Jialin.

Limited 55 8 * M A

Alz2EE &7

AmFEMEERERBRFN LY

S -

2. FEMEEZEBIMNZLIHEAR

7],2.166,000,000 & % 17 °

(b)(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of associated  (b)(i) 7 6 5 £ B = Iz
corporation — ECS Holdings Limited (“ECS”)

zBm —ER
A ([MEARRE]D

3 & 1H B3
M BR

r)%“:

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Number and issued share capital
Director Capacity class of securities of ECS
EEARE
EBRITRAZ
EEnR &6 BEBERER BHBEDL
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Beneficial owner 700,000 ordinary share options 0.19%
Long position
2 5k A 5 A EnEAA 700,000 A% & 3 Ak i A 1
o)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Beneficial owner 300,000 ordinary share options 0.08%
Long position
TETEE EmnEAA 300,000 f% & i A% s A 1
o)
Mr. Mao Xianggian Beneficial owner 900,000 ordinary share options 0.25%
Long position
EMATEE E=mBAA 900,000 fi% & 3 A% fis A 1
IS
BOAERERAF Z-ZFFRH



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (B

(b)(ii) Interests in shares and underlying shares of associated (b)) 7 #8 B 5% B 2 Bz 13 & 48 B8 B}

corporation — ECS ICT Berhad (“ECS ICT”)

9 2 #E 25 — ECS ICT Berhad ([ ECS

ICT )
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Number and issued share capital
Director Capacity class of securities of ECS ICT
{RECSICT
EBRITRAZ
EEnA g7 BEHERER BREDL
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Beneficial owner 150,000 ordinary shares 0.13%
Long position
ok M & BERBEA A 150,000 A% & i i&
o)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the

BEXHIBEEEN RZE—FF+ =
A=+—8 BEARAEBHITRE
HRARA AR ER(ERERF
H R EEEG EXVER) 2 AR D - 8
RN REHELFPRBAEREERR
B GBI EXVERE 7 R8N S BME AR

bs X

SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were 7&%)4%2& ERNER(BFER

taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2010, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or a chief executive of the Company) had an
interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and/or required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any other
members of the Group:

Number and

Directors’ Report (continued)

EFEHRE (B

RZEBE-—ZF+-_A=+—H BMEZHMH"
ATALTGERRREEHITHRARH) RARQ
AZBm R/ SEBERNTEEREZES R
MERPIEXVBE2RID B2 EXERAR
AIRMRIBRBEC R NERE R/ LA
ARR T*ETFW%&HM?{IMFU%3361&%?2
Biffe#Ea R HER  K/IRHER
%TEETTI /ETEAZKE.{}_{T/EWEEXE\
AZBRRAEG LRZEZEMBHBRAREHE
SLFEEHEEMES% A 2R

Approximate
percentage of

Name of shareholder Capacity class of securities shareholding
BRREHE g4 EHFHERER BAREEDS L
L & L Limited Beneficial owner 241,500,000 ordinary shares 19.18%
Long position (Note 1)
L &L Limited ERnfEA 241,500,000 f% & i@ A%
RE (Hf:F1)
Madam Liu Li Beneficial owner 166,000,000 ordinary shares 13.19%
Long position
2IF 2+ ERBEBA 166,000,000 A% % 3 I%
®kAE
Family interest 55,146,000 ordinary shares 4.38%
Long position (Note 2)
EN 3 X 55,146,000 % 3 38 A%
RE (H:F2)
Interest of a controlled 241,500,000 ordinary shares 19.18%
corporation Long position (Note 3)
REHEEER 241,500,000 f% & i@ 2
&E (H:23)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 159,159,999 ordinary shares 12.64%
Long position (Note 4)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited ExEAA 159,159,999 & I i A%
&B (Kiit4)
Beneficial owner 150,000,000 ordinary shares 11.92%

BEmBEA A

Short position (Note 4)
150 000,000 % ¥ i %
BE (fat4)

BAZKRERLA

Z-TEFR



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEWE (A)

Approximate

Number and percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity class of securities shareholding
BRREH g4 ESHEREHR BAREES L
7 31| T 18 55 A A pE Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 ordinary shares 12.64%
B R A A corporation Long position (Note 5)
R 5 50 B e U8 R ELEE S 159,159,999 % ¥ & I%
R BRAF RE (H:t5)
Interest of a controlled 150,000,000 ordinary shares 11.92%
corporation Short position (Note 5)
SR SEE 150,000,000 A% & i@ f%
mAE(MiEs)
I EE A B Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 ordinary shares 12.64%
ZRR AR A A corporation Long position (Note 6)
R Y| T S B REGDEEER 159,159,999 A% & iff ik
ZRR AR A A RE (Hite)
Interest of a controlled 150,000,000 ordinary shares 11.92%
corporation Short position (Note 6)
EEGEEER 150,000,000 % & i@ %
"EiEe)
Mr. Zhou Guohui Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 ordinary shares 12.64%
corporation Long position (Note 6)
JE) B 98 o A REHEEER 159,159,999 f% I i@ %
RE (HiE6)
Interest of a controlled 150,000,000 ordinary shares 11.92%
corporation Short position (Note 6)
ZEHEEE R 150,000,000 A% & 38 f%
&2 (K5t6)
Potent Growth Limited Beneficial owner 174,100,000 ordinary shares 13.83%
Long position (Note 7)
Potent Growth Limited ExRBEBEA 174,100,000 % & i/ %
KRB (HE7)
Mr. Zhang Qing Interest of a controlled 174,100,000 ordinary shares 13.83%

Zhang Qing &4

VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

corporation
R ELEE

Annual Report 2010

Long position (Note 7)
174,100,000 % & i@ A%
R (Mi77)



Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (B

Approximate

Number and percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity class of securities shareholding
BRREH g4 ESHEREHR BAREES L
Fidelity Investment manager 88,366,000 ordinary shares 7.02%
Long position
Fidelity HEKE 88,366,000 i & i A%
oy}
Notes: K&t -

1. The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and
his spouse, Madam Liu Li.

2. 55,146,000 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Madam Liu Li.

3. 241,500,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is equally held by Madam Liu Li and her spouse, Mr. Li
Jialin.

4. The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by &3I4
DRHERRMHERAT.

5. 6.88% and 49.52% of the shares of &It R M At AR (HHIR A ] are held
by FYIMEABEREER AR and FITEHARBIERER QA
respectively. 49.1% of the shares of RYITHEABEEHEBRRAF are held by
YT EE S BUSIER B R AR

6. 92.5% of the shares of R®IIITEA HIFIENR B AF] are held by Mr. Zhou
Guohui.

7. The entire issued capital of Potent Growth Limited is owned by Mr. Zhang Qing.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, so far is known to the
Directors, there was no person other than the Company’s Directors whose
interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or was
directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting
of any other members of the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.

1. FTEMEERERBIANZIHEREFLAL
Limited 2 & #B 2 B ATIRA ©

2. A 255,146,000 8% B% 15 B 21 F1 22 £ 2 B 1B
TEMEERE -

3. 7K A &) 2 241,500,000 % f% 17 L & L Limited 5
B MEZARIZEMERITRABREFNZ L
LERBEEMREEHDERE -

4. Eternal Asia (HK) Limited 2 2 30 B 3 77 IR AN 7 &
Yt BHEEROBRAREAE -

5. RIS BRERMBAR AR RIS S
HBERERARDRNER RV T AEBH
FESE R D B TR A B 2 6.88% K 49.52%BX 17 ° &
B EBRBE AR QT 49.1% 2 k7 B
AT EBBERBERABES °

6. RIS BUSIEIR B R A 7 2 92.5% i 17 6
FBEEEERE -

7. Potent Growth Limited 2 & 3 B 2 17 I &K &
Zhang Qing %t £ A °
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BRI MR REa I ARAEEI
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEERE(E)

Share Options B I R
(@) Share option scheme of the Company @ ZARNnE)ERESTS
The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 17 ARREZZEZE-_FHA+LHERAT
April 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to BRETEI([ZETEl]) mea&EEm2
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. Further details of B E R EEFRE S E - LA R b
the Scheme are set out in note 15 to the financial statements. BREBIELROER - ZitElME—2
FIBE R B REM 15 -
During the year under review, no share options have been granted/ EEEFE  WERD 1T/ K8 ]
exercised/lapsed/cancelled. Details of the share options granted under HEREZTA ERZTEREZE
the Scheme are as follows: MBI R
Exercise
Granted Exercised As at price
Name or category As at during during 31 December per share
of participant Date of offer 1January 2010  theyear the year 2010 (HK$) Exercise period
R-E-ZF R-E-TF BRITFEE
BHERSHEEERN BFEH —-B—H FRARYE FARTE t=A=+-A8 (Br) TEBEH
Director
=
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 20 February 5,000,000 — — 5,000,000 HK$0.54 20 February 2009-
2009 19 February 2019
Bk A5 ZTENF 05487T —TENF_A-+HZE
—A=-+H ZZE-NAEZA+NB
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS Holdings () KB ASEREE — =R

Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, adopted a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme I (the “Scheme II”) on 13 December 2000
whereby the directors of ECS are authorized, at their discretion, to
invite ECS’s employees and directors, including non-executive directors
of ECS and its subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe for shares
of ECS. Further details of the Scheme Il are set in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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During the year under review, the share options granted under the

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (B

BB E A - ARIEE IR e BE AR 2

Scheme |l areas follows: T
Granted Exercised As at Exercise
Name or category As at during during 31 December price per
of participant Date of offer 1 January 2010 the year the year 2010 share (S$) Exercise period
HEHSH RZB-ZF R=-Z-Z2F BRIKE
EHE5 BFEH —B—B FRARE FrfTE tZA=Z+-B FmEr) TEEH
Director
=
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 15 October - 700,000 - 700,000 $$0.55 5 years from date of grant
2010
XMk &£ —E-ZF 0.55¥T KT BEHHERAEF
TA+ERHE
Mr. Mao Xianggian 15 October - 900,000 - 900,000 $$0.55 10 years from date of grant
2010
EMATEE —E-ZF 0.55¥T KT B HH R 10F
TA+ERHA
Mr. Ong WeiHiam, 15 October - 300,000 - 300,000 $$0.55 5 years from date of grant
William 2010
ITERTE —E-ZF 0.55¥T KT BRI HHEF 55
TA+ERHA
Employees 15 October - 11,870,000 - 11,870,000 $$0.55 5to 10 years from date of
2010 grant
(3=1 —E-ZF 055¥T KT BRHHAHRFAE10F
+tATEA
- 13,770,000 - 13,770,000
(c) Share option of a subsidiary — ECS Indo Pte Ltd (‘ECS Indo”)  (c) Fft /& ~ &) i A% # 51 Z—ECS Indo

On 16 October 2009, the Company’s subsidiary, ECS Indo granted
120,000 share options to four senior employees of a subsidiary of ECS
Indo. Further details are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Pte Ltd ([ECSIndo])

R-ZZEZAFE+A+ B KRFAH
& ‘A F1ECS Indo [/ ECS Indo — K M B 2
AB U & = A& B % H120,00017 8 %

B BHBHRNYBRERME15-
Granted Exercised As at Exercise
Name or category As at during during 31 December price per
of participant Date of offer 1 January 2010  the year  the year 2010 share (US$) Exercise period
HEHSH —E-ZF —E-2F BROIKE
5 BE¥EH —A—-B FRARYH FAfTE t=A=+-H (2n) fTEBH
Employees 16 October 120,000 - 6,608 113,392  US$1.8156 16 October 2009
2009 — 16 October 2012
=] —ZTNEF 1815671 —ZZAFTATRAZE
R N= —Z-Z%+tA+KH

BAZKRERLA
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EFEERE(E)

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of the companies comprising the group, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Joint Honour Development Limited (“Joint Honour”), a
company in which Mr. Li Jialin is a major shareholder, in respect of a director
quarter. Pursuant to the lease agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of
HK$200,000 to Joint Honour for a term of 12 months from 1 April 2010 to 31
March 2011.

The above transaction constituted a connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transaction was entered into on normal commercial terms and at an arm’s
length basis and is fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the
Company, taken as a whole, are concerned. The above connected
transaction constituted an exempted connected transaction under the Listing
Rules as each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio)
is less than 0.1% under chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 28 to the financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2010 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B M % AN ¥

cnac

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VST
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VST Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 42 to 147, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2011
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

hRREESR

As at 31 December 2010

31 December

2010
—E-EF
+=HA=+—H
Notes HK$’000
B E THE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE NEHE 5 115,895
Goodwiill EES 6 330,370
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHEMBEE 7 =
Interest in associates 75"35% ENE RS 10 252,005
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 18 42,008
740,278
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b W R IE 11 4,164,365
Inventories FE 12 1,985,616
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEY 13 1,015,251
7,165,232
Total assets HMEE 7,905,510
EQUITY xR
Share capital A% 7 14 125,889
Reserves E 2,007,971
2,133,860
Non-controlling interests FERER 192,472
Total equity MRS 2,326,332
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31 December
2009

HK$’000
TR

116,454
313,609
1,612
40,877
36,802

509,354

3,793,253
1,638,381
450,840

5,882,474
6,391,828

125,889
1,616,653

1,642,542
254,647

1,897,189



Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
mEEESER(E)

As at 31 December 2010 # ZF+_A=+—8H

31 December 31 December
2010 2009
ZE-BF —TTNEF
TZA=+—H e~
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B E FE& T FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred income i FE U A 3,454 4,670
Borrowings B 19 650,104 522,896
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIBAE 18 24,086 11,150
677,644 538,716
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E A R IR 17 3,716,513 3,061,306
Borrowings == 19 1,123,296 836,760
Taxation payable FEATRLIE 61,725 57,857
4,901,534 3,955,923
Total liabilities BmeE 5,679,178 4,494,639
Total equity and liabilities EZREaEHE 7,905,510 6,391,828
Net current assets REBEESE 2,263,698 1,926,551
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAERS 3,003,976 2,435,905

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March ®#He@WR -—ZT——F=F -+ - A#EREZET

2011. 2% o
Li Jialin Tay Eng Hoe

ZEM BBk

Director Director

EF o

The notes on pages 51 to 147 are an integral part of these financial 551 & 147E 7 M ¥ B Ak A B A& | % ~ — 20
7

statements.
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Balance Sheet

EEARBR

As at 31 December 2010

31 December

2010
—E-BF
+=HA=+—H
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FH T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B R E 5 1,332
Investments in subsidiaries RBARZTE 8 1,393,898
1,395,230
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JE U B B~ B FE 9 =
Prepayments TEFFRIB 11 340
Cash and cash equivalents ReEFREEED 13 847
1,187
Total assets MEE 1,396,417
EQUITY R
Share capital A& 7 14 125,889
Reserves 1 16 1,046,457
Total equity A E s 1,172,346
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31 December
2009

HK$’000
TR

1,732
1,320,348

1,322,080

64,991
328
4,282

69,601
1,391,681

125,889
997,115

1,123,004



Balance Sheet (continued)

As at 31 December 2010 ¥

Notes
B 5
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE 19
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 1< B B A Bl FE 9
Other payables and accruals Ho A JE < FRIB K FE ET A IE 17
Borrowings BE 19
Total liabilities wa s
Total equity and liabilities EEREERAE
Net current liabilities RBEEEE
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March

2011.

Li Jialin
F{EM
Director

EE

The notes on pages 51 to
statements.

Tay Eng Hoe
BRI
Director

EE

147 are an integral part of these financial

31 December
2010
—z-%%
+=—B=+—H
HK$°000

TERT

91,888
183
132,000

224,071
224,071
1,396,417

(222,884)

1,172,346

EERERE)
TZHE+-A=+—H

31 December
2009

HK$’000
TR

132,000
132,000

4,677
132,000

136,677
268,677
1,391,681

(67,076)

1,255,004

BEeR - T——F=ZfF -+ - HILEREET

£

=
%
7

o
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Consolidated Income Statement

REEmER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 8= =ZF —ZF +=-_A=+—HBILLFE

Notes
B 3
Turnover BEE 20
Cost of sales HEK R
Gross profit E5
Other gains, net H U A 21
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX
Administrative expenses TR X
Operating profit Rl 22
Finance costs M5 &R 23
Share of associates’ profit 1 B N B A
Profit before taxation B B4 A1 5 A
Taxation Fig 24
Profit for the year/period F /RN F
Attributable to: T ALHEA:
Equity shareholders of the Company AARERFFEA
Non-controlling interests I B A
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) FREN GBI 27
— Basic — &KX
— Diluted —#E

Note: The Group’s Malaysia subsidiary, ECS ICT Berhad (“ECSB”) was listed on the

Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities on 15 April 2010. It ceased to be a
subsidiary and became an associate of the Group and was deconsolidated from

the consolidated financial statements upon its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”).

The notes on pages 51 to 147 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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M w2

1 January 2010
to
31 December 2010
—B-2F
—A—BZ
—2-2F
+=-HA=+-—8H
HK$’000
THET
26,212,600
(25,060,065)

1,152,535

74,530

(449,416)

(236,653)
540,996

(60,552)
480,444

29,919
510,363

(102,305)
408,058

370,280
37,778

408,058

29.41 cents{l|
29.32 cents{ll|

1 April 2009
to
31 December 2009

+-A=+—A8
HK$'000
TAT

19,705,697

(18,742,990)

962,707

4,271

(319,443)

(199,580)

447,955

(30,594)

417,361

3,353

420,714

(100,887)

319,827

276,333
43,494

319,827

23.86 centsfll

23.81 centsfll

—ZENA+ER AEBESFRAS

Fff B A AIECS ICT Berhad ([ECSB]) % & % 78
DEHEXSGMERLET - ERBERAARAEE
B THAASENMHBARMMKABES A
AIRTEREEVBEREANGZE AR

FHIE4TE MR AT ERE 2 — 36

N

-\0



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEHEEDRRK

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &#Z = Z —ZFF + A=+ —HILFE

Profit for the year/period

Other comprehensive income for
the year/period, net of tax:
Exchange differences

Total comprehensive income for
the year/period

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income for
the year/period

1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-%F e
—A—B=% MA—B=E
—z-%F —EENF
+=A=t+-—H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR Tt
F /7 H3 5 F 408,058 319,827
FERNEMEEEA
FRA
ME W =58 132,977 66,436
FEHANEEBABE
541,035 386,263
LT ALHRER:
ARBEZFEA 488,732 331,296
I IR M 52,303 54,967
FEHANEEBABE
541,035 386,263

The notes on pages 51 to 147 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GEREBDRE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZ= = F+ZA=+—RILFE

Equity
attributable
to the
Company’s
Capital equity Non-
Share Share redemption Capital General Translation Other  Retained share- controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings holders interests equity
ENGE £
&3 BHEAES FER
BRAE RHEE WEHE EXREF -REFE EXRE HAEREFE RKREEF £ £ BEE

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTERT FTERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT TER TER TER
(Note (i) (Note (i)  (Note (iii))  (Note (iv)) (Note (v))  (Note (vi))
(BEEG)  (MPEEG))  (FEEGEH)  (REEGW)  (FaEEw)  (BFEE(v)

Balance at 1 April 2009 i RS
MA—RBz&#H 109,124 621,627 2,643 1,978 9,183 (23,222)  (230,362) 645,771 1,136,742 214,550 1,351,292
Profit for the period H 7935 A - - - - - - - 276,333 276,333 43,494 319,827
Other comprehensive income HE2EBA - - - - - 54,963 - - 54,963 11,473 66,436
Total comprehensive income HNZEKABE
for the period — - - - — 54,963 - 276,333 331,296 54,967 386,263
Issue of ordinary shares (Note 14) %17 & &k (H7 it 14) 16,765 150,885 - - - - - - 167,650 — 167,650
Derecognition of financial liability BRERVBAE - - - - - - 46,491 - 46,491 - 46,491
Dividends approved in respect EFERAEZRE
of the previous year - — — — — - - (41,467) (41,467) - (41,467)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BEZe £:5-%51
interests pd3-) - - - - - - - - - (16697)  (16,697)
Transfer of reserves BRERE - - - - 7,517 - - (7.517) - - -
Changes in shareholding in ME AR R
non-controlling interests of T R
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 1,357 1,357
Equity-settled share-based PR M2 EmEE
payment E o] — - - 1,830 - - - - 1,830 470 2,300
Balance at 31 December 2009 RZTTNF+TZA
=t—-Bz&# 125,889 772,512 2,643 3,808 16,700 31,741 (183,871) 873,120 1,642,542 254,647 1,897,189
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZE—TF
—R—B2&% 125,889 772,512 4 2 16,700 31,741 (183,871) 873,120 1,642,542 254,647 1,897,189
Profit for the year F i F - 370,280 370,280 37,778 408,058
Other comprehensive income HipZ2EBA 118,452 - 118,452 14525 132,977
Total comprehensive income FREERALSE
for the year 118,452 370,280 488,732 52,303 541,035
Derecognition of financial liability ERERT K AR - i - 2,500 - 2,500
Dilution and partial disposal of HE— RN E DR 5
a subsidiary to an associate Bk AR E
NG| (108,018)  (108,018)
Dividends paid to non-controling BERz i F:5351
interests pd3-) = (6,460) (6,460)
Transfer of reserves BRRE ; (9,317) - -
Equity-settled share-based IR EZ Iz #EmisE
payment HE 86
Balance at 31 December 2010 R-Z-ZTF+=A
=t—BzEH 125,889 772,512 2,643 X 26,017 150,193 (181,371) 1,234,083 2,133,860 192,472 2,326,332

The notes on pages 51 to 147 are an integral part of these financial 551 E 1478 7 M iT Ak A8 A& | Kk ~ — 20
statements. 4o
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(i)

(i)

(v)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= =

The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that of
the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation in April
2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium arising from
the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies Law
(revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company and the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d).

According to the current People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Company Law, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of their profits after
taxation to statutory surplus reserve until the surplus reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. For the purpose of calculating the amount to be
transferred to the reserve, the profit after taxation is the amount determined
under PRC accounting standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to
be made before profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the
relevant regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or
to increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

Other reserve comprises the difference between consideration paid and the
relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note 2.2(a)).
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

I‘/-_R/\IEI Y 72 /)|b§$&"3—%

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; T ZTF+R=+—RHIFE

1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZF —TTNF
—A—B=& mMA—BZ=
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
+=A=+-—8H +-A=+—8
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ik=2 TER FHET
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBIRERE
Net cash generated from operations KEEBEEXCHESFE 29(a) 258,494 157,320
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREEFEH (19,275) (7,373)
Overseas tax paid B8 HNEIE (67,382) (50,967)
Net cash generated from operating KEEBMEBZHESFE
activities 171,837 98,980
Cash flows from investing activities KREEB2RERE
Interest received =R ERIES! 7,678 974
Purchase of property, plant BEY % R B & 5% s
and equipment (19,101) (76,578)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BELELE
plant and equipment FriS %8 425 9,038
Proceeds from disposal of available- HEHDENBEE
for-sale financial assets FriS %8 707 —
Proceeds from dilution and HE—MBWEARHER
partial disposal of a subsidiary to EK A 5? =VNG)|
an associate P18 3 (31,877) —
Acquisition of additional interest Lz fi it % VN 7 FEHME =
in an associate (3,604) -
Net cash used in investing activities BWEFSMA RS FE (45,772) (66,566)
Cash flows from financing activities BEESCRESRE
Dividends paid B E (41,467)
Net proceeds from issue of BT L BRI RIEEE
ordinary shares - 45,883
New bank borrowings FILRITEE 6,683,898 2,970,103
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (6,197,805) (2,820,700)
Payment to non-controlling interests SRS (6,460) (31,354)
Interest paid B FLE (60,552) (30,594)
Net cash generated from BEEHE RS FE
financing activities 419,081 91,871
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Re kA ESEMLINFE 545,146 124,285
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—B/MA—BZ
at 1 January/1 April RekReEEY 450,840 292,235
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MEREE) 27 19,265 34,320
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—RAx2
31 December RekBEeEEY 13 1,015,251 450,840

The notes on pages 51 to 147 are an integral part of these financial 551 E 1478 7 M iT Ak A8 A& | Kk ~ — 20

paN

statements. 5o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 ¥R 3R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #EZE T —TF+_A=+—HILFE

General Information

VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the distribution of information
technology (“IT”) products, provider of enterprise systems and IT
services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33th Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

As a result of the change in the year end date of the Company in 2009,
all the comparative figures for the financial statements and related
notes are therefore not entirely comparable with those of the current
year.

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March
2011.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current and prior years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGHHEBE »

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 REEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that the available-for-sale financial assets and
other financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are stated at their fair values as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

9 VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHHEME

(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE )
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs EEENREAESTHREEL
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major BREPFAERZEHEHRE LMK
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4. AT EMETERRAEATE
2 HETE R M EE4
The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number of EXEGHMASEBMNAEASE
amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations that are RARBIAEFHEERERZ
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group and MIBEERT B A SR EER - &
the Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant T B@®EERZIERT RMIER
to the Group’s financial statements: B NI ZESHHERNERE
B R AE R
. HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business combinations e FBAUMBHRSEANEINR(Z
TENFEAEE]) [P EE G
e Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate e FEREHEAFR2TR(EF]
financial statements ) E KB FEHEK]
e Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition e FHEGFAEREI9%(EE
and measurement — eligible hedged items R E&@ILA: BRRTE
— A EREPIEE ]
. Improvements to HKFRSs (2009) e HAEYPBREERZHEZ
TTRHF)
. HK (nt) 5, Presentation of Financial Statements — e FBEHERBRB)FSHRIFHFHE
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that contains ZE2HFH —EAAHEE
a Repayment on Demand Clause ] B I Z K (82 & 50 2 TE A
BExzoH4]
The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation REBVWHEERTMRAEEH
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period. MW ARERZ NG ERHERE -

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

The amendment to HKAS 39, HKAS 27 and the issuance of HK (Int)
5 have had no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the amendment and the Interpretation’s
conclusions were consistent with policies already adopted by the
Group. The other developments resulted in changes in
accounting policy but none of these changes in policy have a
material impact on the current or comparative periods, for the
following reasons:

° The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS 3
have not yet had a material effect on the Group’s financial
statements as these changes will first be effective as and
when the Group enters into a relevant transaction (for
example, a business combination) and there is no
requirement to restate the amounts recorded in respect of
previous such transactions.

° The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect of
recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and HKAS
27 (in respect of allocation of losses to non-controlling
interests (previously known as minority interests) in excess
of their equity interest) have had no material impact as
there is no requirement to restate amounts recorded in
previous periods and no such deferred tax assets or losses
arose in the current period.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

Further details of these changes in accounting policy are as
follows:

° As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), any
business combination acquired on or after 1 January 2010
will be recognised in accordance with the new
requirements and detailed guidance contained in HKFRS 3
(revised 2008). These include the following changes in
accounting policies:

— Transaction costs that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination, such as
finder’s fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other
professional and consulting fees, will be expensed
as incurred, whereas previously they were accounted
for as part of the cost of the business combination
and therefore impacted the amount of goodwill
recognised.

— If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining control, these interests
will be treated as if disposed of and reacquired at fair
value on the date of obtaining control. Previously,
the step-up approach would have been applied,
whereby goodwill was computed as if accumulated
at each stage of the acquisition.

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED

Contingent consideration will be measured at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in
the measurement of that contingent consideration
unrelated to facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date will be recognised in profit or
loss, whereas previously these changes were
recognised as an adjustment to the cost of the
business combination and therefore impacted the
amount of goodwill recognised.

If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or other
temporary deductible differences and these fail to
meet the recognition criteria for deferred tax assets
at the date of acquisition, then any subsequent
recognition of these assets will be recognised in
profit or loss, rather than as an adjustment to
goodwill as was previously the policy.

In addition to the Group’s existing policy of
measuring the non-controlling interests (previously
known as the “minority interests”) in the acquiree at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the acquiree’s net identifiable assets, in future the
Group may elect, on a transaction by transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests at fair
value.

Annual Report 2010
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 3
(revised 2008), these new accounting policies will be
applied prospectively to any business combinations in the
current or future periods. The new policy in respect of
recognition in the movement of deferred tax assets will also
be applied prospectively to accumulated tax losses and
other temporary deductible differences acquired in
previous business combinations. No adjustments have
been made to the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that arose from business combinations whose acquisition
dates preceded the application of this revised standard.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 27 (amended 2008),
the following changes in policies will be applied as from 1
January 2010:

— If the Group acquires an additional interest in a non-
wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction will be
accounted for as a transaction with equity
shareholders (the non-controlling interests) in their
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill will be
recognised as a result of such transactions. Similarly,
if the Group disposes of part of its interest in a
subsidiary but still retains control, this transaction will
also be accounted for as a transaction with equity
shareholders (the non-controlling interests) in their
capacity as owners and therefore no profit or loss
will be recognised as a result of such transactions.
Previously the Group treated such transactions as
step-up transactions and partial disposals, respectively.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

2. TEETHHERE»

2.1

WEEE g

REFEVHHRELERES

F(ZETNFLERT) 2B
BHGHEX  ZEFHat R

5 HE T @ A 3R SR 2R
MzEMEXaH BRAE
RELERBEEZH 2K
RETECERBEMEEAR
PR T IEE 2 R R IEE 1
REMAEMNEREER-
BABME B IR RAE &
RIEAZAZ XA HAE
EZBEERBEZAVERE
HAE IR -

MRERWNT BB ERE
2@%:??A¢Wﬂ$%
THEHHKREHHEE =
—ZTF—A—RAEEM:

- WAEBEKE-RFED
& BN a2 o
HC ARSI BEER
AR 3R (3E 45 AR 8 ) DA
EAROETZRZST
R ETeRZERS
ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ/uﬁ%" H B 1I\Jlﬂ/
REBLEERHEA
Bl e E=BNRE
R RPN R
R (FEE )
NBEEAFNETZR
23 RTeRZ%E
*%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ouﬁ
REEBZER DR
R R %&%mﬁﬁ
FIBREEIE ©

BAZKRERLA

Z-TEFR e



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that subsidiary, with any remaining
interest retained by the Group being recognised at
fair value as if reacquired. In addition, as a result of
the adoption of the amendment to HKFRS 5, if at the
end of reporting period the Group has the intention
to dispose of a controlling interest in a subsidiary,
the entire interest in that subsidiary will be classified
as held for sale (assuming that the held for sale
criteria in HKFRS 5 are met) irrespective of the extent
to which the Group will retain an interest. Previously
such transactions were treated as partial disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 27,
these new accounting policies will be applied prospectively
to transactions in current or future periods and therefore
previous periods have not been restated.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

In order to be consistent with the above amendments to
HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27, and as a result of amendments to
HKAS 28, Investments in associates, and HKAS 31,
Interests in joint ventures, the following policies will be
applied as from 1 January 2010:

If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining significant influence or
joint control, these interests will be treated as if
disposed of and reacquired at fair value on the date
of obtaining significant influence or joint control.
Previously, the step-up approach would have been
applied, whereby goodwill was computed as if
accumulated at each stage of the acquisition.

If the Group loses significant influence or joint
control, the transaction will be accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
any remaining interest being recognised at fair value
as if reacquired. Previously such transactions were
treated as partial disposals.

Consistent with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 3 and
HKAS 27, these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to transactions in current or future periods
and therefore previous periods have not been restated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # =T — =
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continuea)

Other changes in accounting policies which are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements are as follows:

As a result of the amendments to HKAS 27, as from 1
January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly owned
subsidiary will be allocated between the controlling and
non-controlling interests in proportion to their interests in
that entity, even if this results in a deficit balance within
consolidated equity being attributed to the non-controlling
interests. Previously, if the allocation of losses to the non-
controlling interests would have resulted in a deficit
balance, the losses were only allocated to the non-
controlling interests if the non-controlling interests were
under a binding obligation to make good the losses. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 27,
this new accounting policy is being applied prospectively
and therefore previous periods have not been restated.

2.2 Consolidation

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests (previously known as “minority
interests”) represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-
controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
balance sheet in accordance with note 2.8 depending on
the nature of the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.8) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in associate (see note 2.2(0)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.7), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2.7).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

2. TEETHHERE»

2.2

:%/T\l:l

(b)

BAZKRERLA

EBRE 4

1

7)

Bt N B (8)
R—FKBERABZRETIR
BEREEANES P BRERD
BR-BIEERBARKIELE
(RBER/FBIELEZHEARR
W) RIE B - RIBEESE
BERREN SRR
BhASGR B B A IR B IR R
Bz @A EERTER
M EEKA(IE) fEH A

E-HRR ZBRERBER
AEBERERRETZEE

FEEFRIFNEHEZKRE
ZEMREBSRELARR
MiaE2.7) o FREF YR B 5B
BBARA . AEBRHEER
BRAZWBREEBHERRES
REMBEBEREDIRGES R
R MR A 5 B e A
RETZBRBREGRREE
EEBRAERIREAR 2
[ B R AR o

HASKEEEBE DR 2B
BHEUEESD AAKEZ
REBRET L EELH®
RE—FEBER EAEEM
EEZERIETEEREER

BRBERESEL 2N R
She BRUL B WM E - A K E
RBERR 2D RIEES
FREZREREE ER
BELBRAEEREZ R
AlzFREZRMMER -

Z-TEFR @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 2.8) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in associate.

2.3 Foreign currency translation

@

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continuea)

(b)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale
investment reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none
of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)  Group companies (continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are taken to equity. When
a foreign operation is sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the carrying values of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Leasehold improvements
HEBFRE

Buildings held for own use carried at cost
FERRBF IR ATE
Furniture and fixtures
FARKE

Office equipment
MAERMA

Computers

T

Motor vehicles

"

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).

Gains and losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.5

2.6

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings, the costs of plant
and machinery and interest charges arising from borrowings
used to finance these assets during the period of construction or
installation and testing. No provision for depreciation is made on
assets under construction until such time as the relevant assets
are completed and are available for the intended use. When the
assets concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to items of other property, plant and equipment and depreciated
in accordance with the policy as stated in note 2.4 above.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010

2. FESTHHEME

2.5

2.6

HEEE

EEEEREEZRPREFLZENY
X WENRRE ERAMERE
HWEEE(NE) R - KA B E1E
FHREKAN - BB MK
AR DA R 52 Bk % B BRI L B
NRREEERMEMBEMRES
MABEXH REBEERTRA
EREREA  TEREREEE
TERE ZEERAREE K
ARERERZHMME BERRHE
BB Wik K 2457 I BUR
FE-

Gk
BERRUATHZE:

) FIZXHRENRFAFE:
R IR RS FTEWEE
77 B0 HE 35 I N £ B e BT R A
BETBENRENAT
B2 B

() 7EMRES B I UEE 5 0 AT
W4 B B 1 A M 28 MR
AFE -

BHARPOE - st EREILNERE
BPERASHEBE W -

BERRAEBRRABEERD
fR-bEAHELNBERREY
BUAREEEHOHBRREHZ
BNERIEERSELEFMHK
ReEFEEMAS  TEFEIR
BB - (RPFEE2.7) °

FAHEXRRSELSEUE MY
ZBHBESAGEHLENE

2o



2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and

associate and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation, which are tested
at least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised in income statement for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business
combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. The Company allocates goodwill to
groups of cash-generating units in the same geographical
location with similar principal activities.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt & (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEGHHEBE

(continued)

2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and 27 RHE A E

associate and non-financial assets (continueq)

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill and available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. The management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition.

@

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are held
for trading or are designated as such upon initial
recognition. A financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than twelve months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are classified as “trade and
other receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the
balance sheet (see notes 2.10 and 2.11).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 =T —ZT &+ _-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEFGHTHEBRE »

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued) 28 @RI A

Financial assets (continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within twelve months of the balance sheet
date.

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss. Investments are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or loss arising from changes in fair value of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss category are presented
in profit or loss within “other gains, net” in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets of fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss as part of
other gains when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHBREME

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments (continued) 28 €F T B (®)

Financial assets (continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in profit or loss as “gains/losses on disposal
of investments”. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Embedded
derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted
for separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the
host contract and the embedded derivatives are not closely
related, a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative,
and the combined instrument is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities (continued)
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative
financial instruments are measured at fair value. When a
derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualifying hedge-relationship, all changes in its
fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using weighted average cost formula. The
cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHBREME

(continued)

2.9 Inventories (continued) 29 FE#®)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down
of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or
loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts,
except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group will
not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate where the effect of
discounting is material.

Impairment losses for trade receivables within trade and other
receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote are recorded using an allowance account. Where the
Group is satisified that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEETHEBMEw

(continued)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents LNBERREEEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Repurchase of share

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity.

212

BeRALSENRERTER
BB S R IR 1T R b B 4
E SO R R B
RATER - BLEATUAEREE
AEEFEORR TESBEE
BEMBEME  AEBAKSE
BMES - ERGARRER
ME ReZMNbRFEELRE
B3R % SR — 55 MR A E
FERMBRTEY -

fig <

B AR

TR RE AN BETHR
5 8 B8 1 4 4L 2 O 42 K

MR RBERNEE P I RATER
HZREA -

L-AEN )

BOERRER BRAR XM
ZREBHREZEBGEER) BR
RESZHR -BRZENHE25

Repurchased shares are presented as a deduction from total BRESED M-
equity.
2.13Trade and other payables Q1I3BEZ R HEMENRIE

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.14 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

2.15Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEFGHTHEBRE »

(continued)

2.15Income tax (continued) 215 FT 8% (&)

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax assets
are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of
a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.16 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continuea)

@

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution plans, the assets
of which are held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The retirement plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and by the relevant group companies. For
employees in the PRC, the Group participates in defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant
local government in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continuea)

@

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained earnings).
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHHEME

(continued)

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities QITRER I ARERE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
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settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where FeapHHeEITENEME
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the B lRgHE WEEKKEEEE

present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the e AAH A EHFTE  BED
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the BERAXNAEGE BRIFLEFNZR
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible LR AR R AT B E(ETT

obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.18 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(@  Operating leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are

2.18
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classified as operating leases. Payments made under DERKEHE - BELE
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the MELZNzxBEIRALA
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis ABEZ EAEEER) REE
over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received are BAUNESEEBER MR-

recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.18 Leases (continued)

(b)  Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of
the asset and the lease term.

2.19 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHHEME

(continued)

2.19 Segment reporting (continued) 219 7 E I & (4

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

()  Sale of goods
Sale of goods is recognised when products have been
delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the products and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.

(iiiy ~ Project revenue
Revenue on projects is recognised in the income statement
based on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract costs for the contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)  Interestincome
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(v)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“RMB”), the United States Dollar (‘US$”), Singapore Dollar
(“S$") and Thai Baht (“THB"). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses foreign currency forward
contracts to reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31
December 2010, the Group had outstanding foreign
currency forward contracts with a notional amount of
approximately HK$912,129,000 (31 December 2009:
approximately HK$611,680,000).

A 5% strengthening of HK$ against financial assets and
liabilities denominated in the following currencies other
than the functional currencies of the Group’s entities at 31
December 2010 and 31 December 2009 would have
increased/(decreased) the post-tax profit in income
statement of the Group and the Company by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for the nine
months ended 31 December 2009.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. BIBEKREERAFE

(continued) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq) 31 MBEREE®
(@)  Foreign exchange risk (continued) (@ MR PR (&)
Group
rE
1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
—A—BZ mMA—RB=E
—z-%fF —EETNF
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—8
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
RMB AR 26,973 23,876
us$ ETT (5,269) (31,865)
S$ N T 10,042 5,958
THB =8k 8,514 3,423
RM B — 4,598
Indonesian Rupiah (“RP”) e & 294 —
Philippine Pesos (“PESO?) FERERR(ER]D 2,033 -
A 5% weakening of HK$ against the above currencies BT DB RES% M
would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above BER MEBEE L BE
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that R ERERME &
all other variables remain constant. MR o
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details of
which have been disclosed in note 13. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its borrowings, details of which have been disclosed in
note 19. Borrowings carried at floating rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2010, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$14,786,000 (for the nine
months ended 31 December 2009: HK$13,584,000)
lower/higher, and the Company’s post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$1,102,000 (for the nine months
ended 31 December 2009: HK$2,640,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

©)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
exposures to these credit risks are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis by established credit policies and
procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances. The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEEKREERAFE

(continued) (%)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continueq) 31 MBEREE®
()  Liquidity risk (continued) d omaEEEREE)
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s EEERBHRRSEEER
liquidity reserve, comprises of undrawn facilities and cash REBRBHES (RIERIER
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. HELRESRRASEED &
The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s EEER - TRAXREE K
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on AARMBAEBEEREREER
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the HENIEBMBEERTEES
contractual maturity date. HEEBEBHANNDT -
Less Between Between
than 1 and 2 and After
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
&t -FR -FZME WEERE BBLE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TR TR TR TR
Group &
At 31 December 2010 —E-ZE5+-H=+-H
Bank borrowings RTEE 1,841,039 1,166,499 3,597 650,032 20,911
Finance lease liabilities REREAE 2,636 1,012 1,624 — —
Trade and other payables BN EMENZE 3,716,513 3,716,513 - - -
At 31 December 2009 —EEAFE+-B=+-AR
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,400,961 863,519 502,173 10,781 24,488
Finance lease liabilities BMEMEARE 1,273 450 823 - -
Trade and other payables B REMENTE 3,061,306 3,061,306 - - -
Company VYN
At 31 December 2010 —E-ZE+-HA=+-H
Bank borrowings RITEE 134,784 134,784 - - -
Other payables and accruals — E fth [& (v 2078 [ & 5+ 708 183 183 - - -
At 31 December 2009 “EZAFE+-A=+-H
Bank borrowings RITEE 269,676 134,838 134,838 - -
Other payables and accruals b & {5 71 78 [ fE &1 5008 4,677 4,677 - - -
BHERBRAF T-TFFR @
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEEKREERAFE

(continued) (#&)

3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXERER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity is calculated as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
December 2010.

Borrowings (Note 19) B8 (Hit19)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

BoBReERREEEY

(Note 13) (Kt7E13)
Net debt BEEFE
Total equity B
Net debt/equity ratio FEE R E
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31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—E-ZF —ETNF

+=—BA=+-—8 +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET
1,773,400 1,359,656
(1,015,251) (450,840)
758,149 908,816
2,326,332 1,897,189

0.33 0.48
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEEKREERAFE

(continued) (4&)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEEME
The fair values of receivables, bank balances and other current FEWRIE  RITEBRLEMREE
assets, payables and accruals, current borrowings and provisions E - ENRIBERERRIE - BEE
are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts due to the B & fﬁ 7% REHRKE Hﬂ HEE
short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities. kaE EQATEEUREAHEE

EEERE

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is SINERHEHNNRFBERZAR

determined by using the forward exchange rates at the reporting
date and comparing to the contractual rates. The fair value of
borrowings is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial
institutions.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2010 and 31
December 2009.

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the reporting date across
the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

° Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data
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EMEE - BENRFEMBTA/R
KEERENRE  HEUSEK
BHOBRTMIS N EFR -

%ﬁ%ﬂlﬁﬁ&ﬁeig—"

TRRIE -

AWAFEYER BT E
TREJNRBEDHESTEH K
WEERETHIFHEITE: BE
FREZATFE=FAELRT UQ
TEIECHBITAEZEREE:
MERBITAZRAFTEIEZA
FHEHIEBEAZREBRG A
BEMEBEESE - FREZE R
T~

« E-BREBER) KA
95 B 75 T AL 10 5% 2 7 95
BERCKERE)HEAT
A

s BER:NEUNEBKT
BAEBMHE®RE AN E
Bt (KR mAEANE ABE
TEESBEATERETS
BEBEAN)EATE

BAZKRERLA Z-TEFR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt & (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEEKREERAFE

(continued) (%)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continueq) 33 AFEMET@E
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) NAFEYEZHETE#E)
. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation e E-ER(&EER):
techniques in which any significant input is not based on ERM(EREREABETD
observable market date I FE R ERER W 3% BUR B AN) 5T
EQAFE
Group
rE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-BR HZBR HB=ZEBR =

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT FEx FEx FTHEx

At 31 December 2010 75/\12 TF
Liabilities =R+
Forward foreign exchange REIINEE R — 39,362 - 39,362
contracts
At 31 December 2009 RZTZENF
+tZA=+t—AH
Liabilities E &
Forward foreign exchange R ENE & 4
contracts — 10,592 — 10,592
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

Estimated write-down of inventories to net

realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs
of inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade receivables requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(continued)

(©)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective and
judgements are based on the Group’s experience and knowledge
of operations. These estimates can be significantly impacted by
many factors including changes in business and economic
conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment 5. M¥E BERZE

Group &
Building
held for Furniture Assets
Leasehold own use and Office Motor under
improvements  carried at cost fixtures equipment Computers vehicles construction Total
BEEA
HE RRAFIE RAR BAE
NEEE ok £ RE R K RE hHREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEr TEr TER FER FEn TEn TER
At 1 April 2009 RZZTAFMA—A
Cost BAE 8,772 8,427 6,202 11,363 35,856 6,144 4,894 81,658
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (3,234) (573) (1,147) (6,063) 9,518) (2,798) - (23,339)
Net book amount BEZE 5,538 7,854 5,055 5,300 26,338 3,346 4,894 58,325
Nine months ended HEZTTNF
31 December 2009 +tZA=+—-HIENEAR
Opening net book amount BORRFE 5,538 7,854 5,055 5,300 26,338 3,346 4,894 58,325
Additions RE 863 65,084 847 937 4,267 4,007 573 76,578
Reclassification EfNE - (114) 1,971 - (1,777) 251 (331) -
Disposals e (622) (6,964) (121) (140) (386) (721) - (8,954)
Depreciation E (1,452) (449) (1,504) (1,284) (6,596) (1,259) - (12,544)
Exchange difference EXZHE 243 79 274 256 1,075 82 323 3,049
Closing net book amount BAREEFE 4,570 66,207 6,522 5,069 22,921 5,706 5,459 116,454
At 31 December 2009 RZZBAF
and 1 January 2010 +ZA=+-Hk
—Z-ZF-f—-H
Cost BAE 8,948 67,390 8,972 10,918 32,665 9,057 5,459 143,409
Accumulated depreciation BRIt E (4,378) (1,189) (2,450) (5,849) (9,744) (3,351) - (26,955)
Net book amount REEE 4,570 66,207 6,522 5,069 22,921 5,706 5,459 116,454
Year ended 31 December 2010 HEZT—TF
+ZRA=+-BLLFE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 4,570 66,207 6,522 5,069 22,921 5,706 5,459 116,454
Additions RE 4,045 - 2,213 2,842 5,901 2,729 3,326 21,056
Transfer €5 - - 2,600 - 252 - (2,852) -
Disposals e 9 - 43) (26) (358) 311) - (747)
Dilution and partial disposal of & —REIF R A R
a subsidiary to an associate BaERABELR
(Note 29(b)) (Hfixo9m) - - (2,420) (2,600) (2,694) (368) - (8,082
Depreciation E (2,011) (1,327) (1,769) (1,246) (7,446) (1,676) - (15,475)
Exchange difference EXZHE 272 21 205 158 1,309 89 635 2,689
Closing net book amount HABEFE 6,867 64,901 7,308 4,197 19,885 6,169 6,568 115,895
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-2F
+-A=t+-8
Cost RAE 12,726 67,701 9,278 9,490 27,811 8,309 6,568 141,883
Accumulated depreciation B E (5,859) (2,800) (1,970) (5,299) (7,926) (2,140) - (25,988)
Net book amount BEFE 6,867 64,901 7,308 4,197 19,885 6,169 6,568 115,895
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment (continueq)

The net book value of property, plant and equipment under finance
leases as at 31 December 2010 was HK$3,353,000 (31 December

2009: HK$1,591,000).

+—BILFE

5. M¥E -BMERRZRE

MEBREBETZVE BERIENRZ
T-ZEFF_A=+—HNEEFER
3,353,000 L (ZZEENF+=-A =+
—H : 1,591,000/ 7T) °

Company PN
Motor vehicles
RE
HK$’000
FHET

At 1 April 2009 R-ZZEZNFMA—H

Cost DN =] 136

Accumulated depreciation REHE (136)

Net book amount REDFE -
Nine months ended 31 December 2009 BEZZZNF+ZA=+—HIENER

Opening net book amount By RERE -

Additions NE 1,998

Depreciation e (266)

Closing net book amount HREREFE 1,732
At 31 December 2009 and at 1 January 2010 RZZEZENF+_A=+—8XK

—E-EF—H—H

Cost RAE 1,998

Accumulated depreciation REE (266)

Net book amount REFE 1,732
Year ended 31 December 2010 HEZ—ZEF+-A=1T—HLLFE

Opening net book amount H ¥ AR EDFE 1,782

Depreciation e (400)

Closing net book amount HIRAREDF(E 1,332
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZEF+=-A=+—H

Cost K AE 1,998

Accumulated depreciation RETITE (666)

Net book amount BREFE 1,332
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Bt 75 R 2R B = ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

Goodwill

Goodwill EES

At 1 January/1 April W—RA—HB/MA—H
Exchange difference N E

At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H

Goodwill is allocated to groups of cash generating units (‘CGUs”) in the
same geographical location with similar principal activities. The
recoverable amount of each group of CGUs is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. Cash flow projection for impairment review is
based on budget prepared on the basis of assumptions reflective of the
prevailing market conditions. Key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations include:

(@)  Cash flows were projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rate included in the cash
flow projections is 10% (31 December 2009: 10%).

(c) A pre-tax discount rate at 31 December 2010 of 7.6% (31
December 2009: 7.6%) was applied in determining the
recoverable amount of the CGUs. The discount rate used reflects
the risk-free rate and the premium for specific risks relating to the
business units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance
(historical data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes in
the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.

Group

£ %
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—z-%F —EETNF
+t=A=+-—H +t=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THEx FAET
330,370 313,609
313,609 298,189
16,761 15,420
330,370 313,609

HESEER R ABETEXBELUN
ReEXEUMAR SHEHREELEN
MARESERERBEETE - SETT
EZHREAANRSRERANDREE
BmLSBRREERUENEE - EAE
EFFATIERKREHE:

@ HREAERBERKEXEALT
FEBE AR -

b) BIERE SRS TED R TED UK S
FRERAI0%B(ZETNFE+ =
A=+—H :10%) °

© —ZZE—ZTFE+-_A=Z+—HHH
AMBLIR R B76%(—ZEZNF+=
A=Z+—H:76%) BERAEETE
REeEXBEMNATKRESEE - 81
ERMERBANEREHERE
I E R E -

AREE2HERINEEREEZEHEA
MBRERRBE TG DREAIK
BBERRELBE) RMHERN
BH -

SEEHEEHEELATEBRRTEAEL
MERBERE THEATELEDSBEAEE
REEREE -

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

7. Available-for-Sale Financial Assets

~

%
=
1)
i

& A E

Club memberships, at cost

At 1 January/1 April
Dilution and partial disposal

WR—A—B/mMA—H

of a subsidiary to an associate EID WY /NS
(Note 29(b)) (Htz£290))
Disposals &
Written off i 58
Exchange difference X E

& — BB B #B 4 #E 2

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the following

currencies:
S$ N3 ot
RM B

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010
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Group

A &M
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—B-2F AT
t=A=+-5 [EEEEEREE
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
— 1,612

Group

A &M
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZHF —ETNF
t=A=+-8 [
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
1,612 1,545
(145) —
(707) —
(798) —
38 67
— 1,612

AHEEVBEENTIIERE:

Group

AEE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-2fF “EThE
+=A=+-—8 +-A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
1,473
139
1,612




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

8. Investments in Subsidiaries 8. RMBATRZRE

Company
AT
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-2F —TTAF
+t=H=+-—H +=ZA=+—8”
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Investments at cost B KA
— Shares listed in Singapore — ¥ Ew AR 1,218,903 1,218,903
— Unlisted investments, at cost —LHRE  EAKNE 174,995 101,445
1,393,898 1,320,348

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are as

follows: RAIZHBWOT
Place of Principal activities and Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ place of share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
AR FEEBR BRITRES FEERBED L
AECIEE FR 3L 3 B A 2 HEMEARFE HiE e
(Ftita)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding, 4 ordinary shares 100% .
Islands British Virgin Islands of US$1 each
BEHEBBERAF EEBERHS REFMR - AR EREE 100% -
EERIHS 1Rz EBR
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT RMB100,000,000 100% -
Electronic Co., Ltd. products in the PRC
RINBEREEF H BB EE A R # 100,000,000 7T 100% —
BRA A RHEE
VST Computers Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares - 100%
(H.K.) Limited products in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
BHEKES) BB REEDIHEM 2M AR E E — 100%
BRAAE BHREm 1B T EER

62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
of HK$1 each
62,000,000 %
REEIETZ
MR EREIEILR

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

8. Investments in Subsidiaries continueq) 8. RMBARZREw
Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Prinicipal activities and share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
i)y FTEXBR BRITRE R
NGRS FX 3L 3t B Rt B EMEARFE =3 S
(Ktita)
EREBELEERRK PRC Distribution of IT RMB10,000,000 - 100%
AR A a products in the PRC
IEREATERK # R B S HE A KR #10,000,0007T — 100%
BERRA] RHEZE
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding and 365,360,174 89.66% —
distribution of IT ordinary shares of
products, provision S$$0.3088 each

of IT services and
enterprise systems

in Singapore
ERRKBRAF EZimiliE4 RETIE R EIREER - 365,360,174 % 89.66% —
DEEABRER - & I 180.3088
RHE MBI RS N T 2 AR
KRG
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding 196,000 preferred — 89.66%
(Thailand) Co., in Thailand shares, non-accumulative
Limited dividend, Baht 1.25 per
share; and 204,000
ordinary shares,
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings R REENEREZR 196,000 % 12 5 % - — 89.66%
(Thailand) Co., FERFEE  BR
Limited H{E1.25Z &
J2204,000 f% & i@ A%
f% T 1B 1.25 %% #
The Value Systems Thailand Provider of information 7,783,000 shares — 89.66%
Co., Limited technology products of 10 Baht each

and services for IT
infrastructure in Thailand

The Value Systems = REEARRE R R 7,783,000 % — 89.66%
Co., Limited BN R E R AL SR EE10Z K
BR 75 L FE 7S pdii v
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

8. RMIBATRZRE »

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
i)y FTEXBR BITRAE FEERE L
NGRS FX 3L 3t B Rt B EMEARFE =3 S
(Ktita)
ECS Computers Singapore Provider of information 13,600,000 ordinary - 89.66%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd. technology products shares of S$1 each
and services for [T
infrastructure in
Singapore
ECS Computers NI TN A& SRR E 13,600,000 A% &F % [ (& — 89.66%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd. RE AR E R 1FT IR T 2 B AR
R 7% FE 7S
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Singapore Retail of information 150,000 ordinary - 89.66%
Pte Ltd. technology products, shares of S$1 each
[T equipment and
accessories in Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) #7 il 3 REME I E 150,000 /& — 89.66%
Pte Ltd. BEABREM® - BREEIFNET
BB RRE R 2 EmAR
RHZE
Isan System Pte Ltd. Singapore Provision and distribution 2 ordinary shares — 89.66%
of information technology of S$1 each
products and general
trading of IT equipment
in Singapore
Isan System Pte Ltd. ¥k TOE N3 4R Ko 5 4 2R EE — 89.66%
BB ER R 15 IN3% T 2 AR
HE-—REARK
REES
ECS Enterprise Singapore Distribution of IT solutions 5,000,000 ordinary - 89.66%
Solutions Pte Ltd. shares of S$1 each
ECS Enterprise N DB MR E® 5,000,000 & & ik E & — 89.66%
Solutions Pte Ltd. 13T N3 T 2 i AR
ECS Technology Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary — 89.66%
(China) Limited provider of information shares of HK$1 each
technology products and
services for IT
infrastructure in
Hong Kong
ECS Technology BA REBREREER 11,500,000 % & I & & — 89.66%
(China) Limited EARREMNEA 1B T BBER
R BB 2R e PR 75
HER
BHEZERERDH Z-TEFR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

8. Investments in Subsidiaries (ontinued) 8. RMBATZKRE »

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
E3iigs g FEEBR BRITRA FEEZE A
NGRS FX 3L 3t B Rt B EMEARFE =3 S
(Htita)
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$10,000,000 — 89.66%
(Guangzhou) technology products
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology & BB B E M & 10,000,000 3 7T - 89.66%
(Guangzhou) BB R A R
Company Limited PR 75 £ fE
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$1,282,000 - 89.66%
Company Limited technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in
the PRC
ECS Technology A PEEARRERR 1,282,000 7T — 89.66%
Company Limited AR A R
BR 75 1 FE 75
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of information US$25,000,000 — 89.66%
Management Co., Ltd. technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in
the PRC
ECS (Shanghai) H BB AR E M & 25,000,000 7T, - 89.66%
Management Co., Ltd. BB ERERS
PR e m
ECS China PRC Provider of information US$15,000,000 - 89.66%
Technology (Shanghai) technology products
Company Limited and services for IT
infrastructure in
the PRC
ECS China Hh PEEAREERR 15,000,000 7T — 89.66%
Technology (Shanghai) BB R
Company Limited PR 7%t FE S
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

8. RMIBATRZRE »

Place of Particulars of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered interest held
Name establishment place of operations capital Directly Indirectly
(Note a)
B3y FEEBR ERITRE FEERED L
NGRS 3L it B Rt B EMEARFE =3 S
(Kt ita)
EIT Info-tech Limited Hong Kong Provider of information US$5,000,000 — 89.66%
technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
EIT Info-tech Limited & & hEEMBRER K 5,000,000 % JT — 89.66%
BB ERRE
BR 75 1 FE 75
ECS Technology Hong Kong Provider of information US$10,000,000 — 89.66%
(HK) Co., Limited technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology B BB AR B E & 10,000,000 7T - 89.66%
(HK) Co., Limited BB ERRE
BR 75 14 FE 75
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd. Singapore Distributor of information 2,624,785 ordinary - 79.90%
technology products shares, issued and paid
in Singapore up capital: US$1,615,392
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd. 0 M E MM RE®R 2,524,785 R B 81T K — 79.90%
5 BRI AR E AR
1,615,392 3 7T
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of information 100,000 ordinary - 79.90%
technology products shares of US$1 each
in Indonesia
PT ECS Indo Jaya Efe e &R E M 100,000 f% & B il & — 79.90%
DEE 1€ BB
ECS Infocom Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares — 89.66%
(Phils) Pte. Ltd. in Singapore of S$1 each
ECS Infocom ESWIlIE g REMBRERERR 2RESREEIF MK T — 89.66%
(Phils) Pte. Ltd. 2 EE N
Note: Baz -

(@) All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established

in the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

@ KBRIERINHBEATDLSZHNEDR
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9. Amount Due from/(to) a Subsidiary 9. & W (FEA) M B 2 A
I8
The amount due to a subsidiary of HK$91,888,000 (31 December JFE 1 BfY B8 A &) X TH 91,888,000 L (= F
2009: due from a subsidiary of HK$64,991,000) is unsecured, interest- ZhE+_R=+—8B: EKHBELA
free, denominated in HK$ and is repayable on demand. FIE64,991,0008 ) BEER - £ 8

AETTRHE R AR BREEE -

10. Interest in Associates 10. REBEE QAR ER
Group
NE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
+=—A=+-—8 +fﬂ:+—E|
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHERT FET
Unlisted ¥LETH
Share of net assets DIRFEE 47,400 37,363
Loan to an associate B EINCTE=E 4 3,545 3,514
50,945 40,877
Listed outside Hong Kong ERUMELET
Share of net assets DIEFEE 201,060 -
252,005 40,877
Market value of listed shares FHRETmE 166,548 N/A
On 15 April 2010, the Group’s subsidiary, ECSB issued 28,000,000 RZE—ZFOA+HHEH  AEEWES
new ordinary shares at RM1.46 per share in connection with its listing A AIECSBRL H £ 5 R 2 &2 5 Fr £ 1R
on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities. Subsequently, the =T 8 7728,000,000% & B T (B 5 #51.46
Group disposed of 7,200,000 shares in ECSB at the same price and T2 E @R g AREBLAHERBE
ECSB ceased to be a subsidiary on that date as the Group’s interest 1%t 5 ECSB 2 7,200,000 A% % 19 + Bl AN &
was reduced to 40% and became an associate of the Group. & B (L #E &5 5k 2 £40% * ECSBTNE A
EBEZMBRF MK ARNEBEZQ
|:|_J o
On 28 May 2010, the Group reacquired 1,222,500 Shares of ECSB for RZZE—FTFRA-F+N\B - NEBHB
a cash consideration of approximately RM1,520,000, thereby R &R E L F#1,520,000T F # K E
increasing the Group's interest in ECSB to 41% at 31 December 2010. 1,222,500 1RECSBIR 10 - A KB R ==
—TFE+ A=+ —BNESCBZ =
BENY -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

10. Interest in Associates (ontinued) 10 REEE R TINER o

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2010 are as follows: R-ZF-—ZFFA=1t—"HHEERA
BB
Equity interest
held by Group
Country of Principal Particulars of FEBEMEER
Name incorporation activities issued shares held 2010 2009
e ®T
=g AMEYER FEER B3 15 —E-2F —ZETNEF
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc Philippines Distribution of 3,097,055 ordinary shares of 49.99% 49.99%
IT products Peso 100 each
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc ~ JE& & DIHBMRRE m 3,097,055k & R E &
1008 R 2 L@k
ECSICT Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 120,000,000 ordinary 41% —
technology and shares of RM0.5 each
services for IT
infrastructure
in Malaysia
ECSICT Berhad BokAEE AERAEGEMRE 120,000,000 &R EE
HERRMH B AR 0558 2 Limik
KRR

The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured,
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year.

AERNAETAE TAER

BAZKRERLA

A B & A
#RBERTEHAN-FAKME -

Z-TEFR @
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10. Interest In Associates continueq) 10 RBE XTI NER @

The summarised financial information of the associates as at 31 R-F-FFE+-_A=+—R BEQ
December 2010 are as follows: B EER BT
Group
NE

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—g-%fF —EThE

+=-HA=+-—-8H +=-A=+—H”

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET FAET

Assets EE 1,184,870 311,062

Liabilities BE (599,661) (227,700)

Equity = 585,209 83,362

1 January 2010 1 April 2009

to to

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—E2-2F —EENF

—A—HBZE mMA—RZE

—E-%F —EThE

t=A=+-5 [EEEEEREE

HK$°000 HK$’000

THET FET

Revenue g 4,054,216 682,881

Profit il 86,372 7,481
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11. Trade and Other Receivables M EFRHEMEKRFE
Group Company
AEH ¥ NN

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009

—zzns EEEEEXE =T a
t=A=t—n QRN — f =+ —F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT FHR FHT

Trade receivables 5 E A 3,688,863 3,332,694

Less: provision for RO E RS
impairment (94,885) (70,533)
Trade receivables, net & 5 & Uk 3078 5 58 3,593,978 3,262,161
Other receivables and ﬁ fth, 8 U 30 IE R
prepayments TR B 570,387 531,092 328
4,164,365 3,793,253
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade and other HRAEEEAEZFERSHEF K
receivables as the Group has large number of customers and AEBMESMNHEMBERFIBLEEE
counterparties. SRR -
The Group grants credit period to third party customers ranging from 7 AEBRKRTFTE=ZABFPZEEHNT
to 90 days, which may be extended for selected customers depending 7EQH M 1I MBEPZEEHA T
on their trade volume and settlement history with the Group. The R8T §§ﬁ$ EFEZRHERNTR
ageing analysis of gross trade receivables by invoice date is as follows: LEHME - BHERFBLREREEH
Eﬁ?ﬁﬁz,ﬁﬁﬁé S AT LI AT
Group
rE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E2-ZF —EENF
+=—A=+-—8 +fﬂ:+—a
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHERT T T
0-30 days 0F30H 2,109,784 2,052,682
31-60 days 31£260H 923,705 729,197
61-90 days 61290H 314,609 266,749
Over 90 days B0 H 340,765 284,066

3,688,863 3,332,694

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @
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11. Trade and Other Receivables ontinueq N EZREMERRIE .
As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of HK$705,189,000 (31 RZE—ZTF+A=+—H 22
December 2009: HK$712,860,000), which were fully performing, were 1T 8 B S FE U K 15 705,189,000
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent BLT(ZEENF+ZA=+—8:
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing 712,860,000 7T ) B 8 Hi {8 M 5 E %
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows: EREEZEZBYRFAER HE KO

WHEENLE -ZEEHREUFENG
HABREBR DT -
Group
rEBE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
+t=A=+t-~8 +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT FHET
0-30 days 0£30H 498,860 559,243
31-60 days 31£260H 104,679 110,149
61-90 days 61290H 44,145 23,585
over 90 days HiBooH 57,505 19,883
705,189 712,860
As at 31 December 2010, trade receivables of HK$94,885,000 (31 R_ZZE-—ZF+_A=+—H BHE
December 2009: HK$70,533,000) were impaired and full provision has I 5% 194,885,000 T (ZEENF+=
been made. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows: A =+—8 :70,533,000/& 7t) B R & -
WEEH 2 E8EE ZSEWRENRE
BotraT :
Group
KEH

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—E-2F —ETHE

+t=A=+-8 R

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET TET

0-90 days 02 90H - 3,333
Over 90 days B0 H 94,885 67,200

94,885 70,5633
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

. f=v] =
11. Trade and Other Receivables (continueq) N EZREMERRE
Movements on the provision trade receivables are as follows: HORWHRBRERENZSHNOT
Group
rE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E2-FF —TTNF
+=BA=+—H +fﬂf+ =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHET FET
At 1 January/1 April ®»—A—HB/MA—H 70,533 59,529
Provision b2 25,330 14,064
Receivables written off during W RIERERET HERN
the year/period as uncollectible 85 & S BT Uk B /9 FE Y3008 (1,918) (5,188)
Dilution and partial disposal of o — KB AR 2R
a subsidiary to an associate (ED =3 BN (3,498) —
Exchange difference E 5 Z5E 4,438 2,128
At 31 December Rt+-—_A=+—H 94,885 70,533
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated B REMBHHRIBERENL T EE
in the following currencies: IR
Group Company
rE KA F

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF —E-EF —ETNF
+TZA=+—0 peliaRkl=l — F =+ — 0 Gyl b=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAET THET FAT
HK$ BT 4,232 6,597 328
RMB AR 2,317,030 1,981,678 —
S$ TN T 282,365 164,058 —
Us$ ETT 846,006 708,967 —
THB Tk 667,100 510,789 —
RM K 403,690 —
Indonesian Rupiah EERE
(“RP”) , 17,126 —
Philippine Pesos FREBR

(“PESO”) (M#=x1) 348 -

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their HABREHREE HESREME
fair values due to their short-term maturities. WHEMEEEREATEMRS

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @
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11. Trade and Other Receivables (continueq)

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the trade and other receivables above. The Group did
not hold any collateral as security.

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical
information about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties
do not have significant defaults in the past.

12. Inventories

11.

12.

Inventories on hand FERFE

— Held for re-sale —FEHEE

— Held for return to suppliers —HEFROMHER
or exchange to customers SEEFER

Inventories-in-transit EEPEFEE

Less: provision W BB

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is
shown in note 22.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010
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RBEEEAHNEERRERR LAE S
MEMBBRFRENRAEE A REYLE
HEERRERER-

EBHMSORERE 5 & H i & WK K
EEEZDN2EXSHEFNBEROE
- RARFETFREVEENEY -

€=
FE
Group
EE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—B-2F —ETNF
t=A=+-5 [EEEEEREE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1,636,680 1,418,009
- 2,937
388,568 261,382
(39,632) (43,947)
1,985,616 1,638,381

ERRRAXZFESBZ DM R E
22
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13. Cash and Cash Equivalents 1. BERAESEEY
Group Company
rEE b NN

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2010 2009
—g-2%F T3 —g-%F e
+=BA=+-—H TZA=1+—H [ l=]
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FAT FET FAT
Cash at bank andinhand $R1TFEREEFRE 909,863 847
Short-term bank deposits 45 BR4R 7717 2%

(Note a) (Hfiza) 105,388 45,596
Cash and cash equivalents IR & R & % EBY 1,015,251
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated ReRkBReSEMREAENTNIEER
in the following currencies: & :
Group Company
rE b NS

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009

—TEAE —EB—EF —EENF
UERERl = 7 =+ — 0 R

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T T FAT T8 T 7 Tt

HK$ B 24,481 10,399
Us$ eV 324,427 136,842 18 12
RMB (Note b) AR (K1 iEb) 560,260 180,471

s$ N o 93,177 51,703 806
THB Ze bk 6,689 15,300 —
RM Bk = 55,251 —

RP Hea 6,217 874 -
1,015,251 450,840

Notes: Biat -

(@)  The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.53% (31 @ BEHRERITEFRZERFIEB053%
December 2009: 0.07%) per annum. These deposits have an average —EEANF+ A=+ —8:
maturity of 10.5 days (31 December 2009: 5.1 days). 0.07%) « & EFH 2 FHIE A A10.5

A(ZE2ZhF+=ZA=+—H:51
H) -

()  The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are ) AEEBUAAREFABEZRITESRRT
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB ROTFEHRPBEZRIT RBZFUAA
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds REGFEZERAINERBEERED
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange B 78 8 <7 P BT P 2B A 2 NEE B
control promulgated by the government of the PRC. il A7 Bl KAl o

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH o
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14. Share Capital 14,

Authorised: ETE
2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
(31 December 2009: 2,000,000,000) (ZZEZNEFE+TZA
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each =+—H :2,000,000,000) %

FREEC1E L & B

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

31 December 2010
—g-2Ft+-A=t

Number of issued
ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each
SREE

0187

ZE BT
EERYE

At 1 January/1 Apri ®»—A—B/MA—H 1,258,888,665
Issue of shares (Note a) BITRG (Ffita) =

At 31 December R+-A=+—8H 1,258,888,865

Notes:

(a) During the nine months ended 31 December 2009, 167,649,999 ordinary
shares were issued at a consideration of HK$1 per ordinary share.
Deposits of HK$121,767,000 for the issue were received in the year
ended 31 March 2009 and the balance of HK$45,883,000 were received
during the nine months ended 31 December 2009.
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31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—E-Z5F —ETNF

+t=A=+-7 [EEEEEEREE

HK$°000 HK$’000
FTERT TR

200,000 200,000

BETkBREZEBR:

31 December 2009

=[E “EENEFZA=1—H
Number of
issued ordinary
shares of
Par value HK$0.1 each Par value
BREE
0187
ZEET
H{E LTdkEE AfE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
125,889 1,091,238,666 109,124
- 167,649,999 16,765
125,889 1,258,888,665 125,889
Bt et -
@ ®#BEZZEZEAFTZA=+—HIEA

& A 167,649,999 f% & i@ A% 12 & i &
BRIBTHREZET - HEZZT
WNE=ZA=Z+—BLEFEEKRNA
B8 % 17 2 ¥ £121,767,0007%8 7T * £
45,883,000 TEREBEE T NLF+
—A=Z+—RA1LAM@MARIKE -



14. Share Capl’[al (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the balance sheet

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 7% R 2% Bt 5F (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

14, R )

Kzt - ()

(®)

REE R REBIRRITEZ B

date
31 December 2010
Exercise price and 2009
—E-2F
R=ZZhEF
Exercise period 1T{EH] TEE +=A=+—H
20 February 2009 to 19 February 2019 —ZEEZAF -/ -+HEZ-_ZT—NF-_A+NH HK$0.54 5,000,000

0.54% 7T

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the
Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment

(@) Share option scheme of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 17 April 2002 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees (including both
full time and part time employees, and executive Directors), non-
executive Directors, suppliers, customers and other corporations
or individuals that provide support to the Group (as defined in the
share option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the share option scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and (iii)
the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The options vest immediately at the date of grant
and are then exercisable within a period of ten years. Each share
option gives the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

13.

ShERER THEEAENRE K
KRR E B - 2 HWPEE — PFIS
R B IMRMIFE15 -

DB 9 3 A 2 M 3 A

A IE

(@

PN g ]

n= —FMWA++RA AQH
ERM—EEREE BILER
NAESTEEENSEFEREE (R
REBEEBRERERANITES)
FERTEFE HER BFPREM
HASEREZE Z 2 A @5
AT (EERBERES) ZEMME
B URBARE 2K G - BRI
BREREIN TRED ZEBRERR
FRrEaEROHBETEBEAR
NAEIEBEITRAZ10% - RIBEMH
RARREZGET UETLRT
zBmE (AL @EkrE
B (WREHARBIMEL S
BREXAMI Z2ARA L EBRK
TE: M)A ZEZEZ 8 a1 A @
BEABIHMBELBARER
oz AR el L@l mE -
BREREHAHBONREE ¥R+
FZHEART FITE - S0 ERE
ByFHEEARBEARA —RER
fig 2 #EF)

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt & (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 =T —ZT &+ _-_A=+—HILFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment coniives 15 LA BEz2ERE

I )
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) @ AnrEBERESS @
No share options were granted during the year ended 31 HE-Z-—ZF+=-A=+—H
December 2010. 5,000,000 share options were granted to an IFE BERLEMERE - &
executive director during the year ended 31 March 2009. EZETANF=ZA=1+—RHL#HF
& - B 1% 115,000,00017 B A% #E T —
BHITESE o
()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, ) UTARLBREZK
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of shares: RRAEH - B B
HERBREMIN KM &
Number Contractual
of Vesting term
options Conditions of options
B B R
BRESE =B R EHIERR
Options granted to a director B¥—8% $ 2 BB
— On 20 February 2009 —R-ETNF 5,000,000 Nil#& 10 years+4F
—RA=+H
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (i) FEREZEE KNEF
options are as follows: BHITEBRT -
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—B-FFt-fA=t-H “EFNFTZA=T-A
Weighted Weighted
Average \[TTy=Ige) B Average exercise Number of
exercise price share options price share options
mEFH METH
fTfEfE BREZE 1688 BREHE
Outstanding at 1 January/1 Aprl R —FA—B/MA—8
and 31 December X+-A=+-H HK$0.54 HK$0.54
W AITE 0.543 ¢ 5,000,000 0.54/8 7T 5,000,000
Exercisable at 31 December B+=-—B=+—8H HK$0.54 HK$0.54
AFT6E 0543 T 5,000,000 0.547 7T 5,000,000
The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had an RZE—ZFEF+_A=+—
exercise price of HK$0.54 (31 December 2009: HK$0.54) HERTE2EREZ1TE
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.2 BAOS4BTL(ZEZTALE+
years (31 December 2009: 9.2 years). —A=Z+—H:054%T)
mmMEFERTENFRA
B2HE(ZZEZENF+AZ
+—B:92%)-
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continvegs 15, AR X F 2 R &

F;IE ()
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) @ AraBERESTS @
(i) Fair value of share options and assumptions i) HWREAFEERRRE
The fair value of services received in return for share REE B IR P 1S AR TS
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value ZRAFEDZERBEHER
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of 2 AFEFE IIELE
the share options granted is measured based on a gtz AFETRE=1ERX
trinomial model. The contractual life of the share option is B G- BRECAONTF
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early HAERAZERER - HZE
exercise are incorporated into the trinomial lattice model. IEZERTE AZE =ER
BifERR o
Fair value of share options and assumption are as follows: AR A TERRZEER W
T
31 March 2009
—EENF
=A=+-8
Fair value at measurement date AR = /N | HK$0.40
0.407 7T
Share price f&(E HK$0.54
0.54/8 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$0.54
0.547% 7T
Expected volatility TEERIR 18 67.3%
Option life BN A 10 years
T+
Risk-free interest rate = [ B 1| 1.7%
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility. TEHR IR Th A 2R R AR
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends. EoTBHBRBNEELERE
Change in the subjective input assumptions could BiRE TBH ARSI CE
materially affect the fair value estimate. A AFTEMFTEXNEXR

By 488
FE o

BHAERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 &#Z=—-ZF — =

F+-A=t+—BILEE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment (continuec)

(b)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS
Holdings Limited (“ECS”)

The Company'’s subsidiary, ECS, has a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (“Scheme II”), which was adopted
on 13 December 2000 whereby the directors of ECS are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite ECS’s employees and
directors, including non-executive directors of ECS and its
subsidiaries (‘ECS Group”) to take up options to subscribe for
shares of ECS. The subscription price is determined by the
ECS’s Board of Directors and is set either at (i) a price equal to
the average of the last dealt price of ECS’s share for the three
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the grant of the
option (i) a discount to the market price not exceeding 20% of
the market price in respect of that option. Each share option
gives the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
ECS. The options vest after one year from the date of grant and
are then exercisable at any time after the first anniversary of the
grant date and in case of option with exercise price set at a
discount, at any time after the second anniversary of date of
grant and those granted to non-executive directors are
exercisable up to the fifth anniversary of the date of grant. The
scheme will continue to be in force at the discretion of the
compensation committee of ECS, subject to a maximum period
of ten years commencing 13 December 2000.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 =T — T &+ A=+ —HILFE

15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment conives 15, BABR 43 32 4 2 #E 35 45

FIE ()
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS b) MEIBERBEBRA

HoIdings Limited (“ECS”) (continued) A(EABEDWERE

A UIC )

()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, () UTREHBREZERR
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of BHE - EBKRELERAE
shares: BRRINBRDEE

Number Contractual
of Vesting term
options Conditions of options
B B R
BREHE 55 & R4 ARHR
Options granted to directors BTEE BRE 1,900,000 Oneyearfrom 5to 10 years
— On 15 October 2010 —RZZE—ZTF date of grant RE+F
+A+HA R p=R: b
—
Options granted to employees BTEE ZEBRE 11,870,000 Onevyearfrom 5 to 10 years
— On 15 October 2010 —RZE—TF date of grant hETF
+A+HA BB ER
—

BHAERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH 0
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continues) 15, 14 H% BT Z2EREE
FIE ()

(b) IiﬁJéf-s AEARABEBERL
) ([EARRE D WEE IR
J gl

(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS
Holdings Limited (“ECS”) (continued)

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

(i)

31 December 2010
—E-ZF+-A=1—H

Weighted
Average
exercise price
mE¥g
TEE
Outstanding at 1 January/1 Aprl  #*—RA—HB,/MA—H
AT =
Granted during the year REREH $$0.55
0.553f 3K 7o
Outstanding at 31 December B+-—B=+—8H $$0.55
AR AT 0.55%7 f4K 7T
Exercisable at 31 December B+=-—B=+—8H
ATIE

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had an
exercise price of S$0.55 (31 December 2009: S$Nil) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.8 to 9.8
years (31 December 2009: Nil).

The fair value of the share options granted is measured by
reference to ECS share price as at year end.

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Change in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.
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Number of
share options

BREZE

13,770,000

13,770,000

R ZHE RNEFIT
EEWT :

31 December 2009
—ZEEAFE+-RA=1—H

Weighted
Average Number of
exercise price share options

T

TEE B ES A

RZE—ZEF+ZA=+—
B RITEZEREZITE
BAROSSFME TL(ZEZEAN
F+-—_A=+—8:&)'m
MEFHHRTANFEAALS
ZI8F(ZZEZAF+=A
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment coniives 15, LABR BTz ERE

I ()

(c) Share option of a subsidiary — ECS Indo Pte Ltd (“ECS (c) B /& 2 B ECSIndoPte Ltd([ ECS
Indo”) Indo ) #Y 8% AR #E 5+ 2
On 16 October 2009, ECS Indo granted 120,000 share options RZZEZTAF+H+/XH ECS
to four senior employees of a subsidiary of ECS Indo. Each Indo[A1ECS Indo i B A &) B9 /0 & =
option is, upon full payment of the exercise price, convertible into & B % H1120,00017 38 % # - &
one new ordinary share of ECS Indo. The options are exercisable DERERNBHZMNITEER A
at any time within 3 years from the grant date and are settled by 1 SBECS Indo— B FT L i@k - 3%
physical delivery of shares. EHEBRERARIBHRE=FAM

T AABMRXABROEE -

()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, ) BEEIRREHEWT M
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of BEREREHDUNED N KHD
shares: i

Contractual
Number of Vesting term of
options Conditions options
BRESH
BREHE 55 B R4 1R K
Options granted to a employee EERT-REEW
i Ak
— On 16 October 2009 —RZZETENF 120,000 Nil £  3vyears =4
+A+RA

BHAERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @
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15. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment coniives 15 LA 43 32 4 2 R 25 45

I ()
(c) Share option of a subsidiary — ECS Indo Pte Ltd (“ECS (c) Ff$ & > BIECS Indo Pte Ltd ([ ECS
Indo”) (continuea) Indo]) Y & AR #E 5T &l (42)
(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share iy FERENEE RINEFHE
options are as follows: B
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
“E-E5+-A=+—-H —EEAF+=A=1—H
Weighted Weighted
Average Number of Average  Number of share
exercise price share options exercise price options
mE¥g mEFH
TR BREHA A BhREHA
Outstanding at 1 January/1 Aprl ~ R—A—8/IM A US$1.8156 113,392 US$1.8156 120,000
—BEETE 1.8156% 7 1.8156% 7T
Granted/(exercised) during the & /IR E L/
year/period (B17E) - - (6,608)
QOutstanding at 31 December R+=ZAR=+—H US$1.8156 US$1.8156
8 A 17 1.8156 %7 113,392 1.8156% 7T 113,392
Exercisable at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H US$1.8156 US$1.8156
AFTE 1.8156% T 113,392 1.8156% 7T 113,392
The fair value of such equity-settled share-based payments was LRROERN s EaBEEREZR
determined based on adjusted market comparables. FEIVIREABRTIS A E LB R

BHEE °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 =T — T &+ A=+ —HILFE

16. & 16

REBGAER SN DB Y R RS
BRHOHRARGEEZEDR - AHH
NERAREFARBEREK D Z B

16. Reserves

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in

the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning ZHEHBENTX:
and the end of the current period and prior year are set out below:
Company ¥iN/NE|
Capital
Share redemption Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
Ex
& 43 % B EE e ERfE REEF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FET FEL FEL FET
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(B15) (Hiiz) (H:z)
Balance at —EENF
1 April 2009 E B—HB&&& 623,310 2,643 1,978 175,209 803,140
Profit and total comprehensive HAaFE2EEA
income for the period FCES - - - 84,557 84,557
Dividend approved on respect EEHENRE
of the previous year - — — (41,467) (41,467)
Issue of ordinary shares BT BR 150,885 - - - 150,885
Balance at ZTENEF
31 December 2009 +-A=1+—H
B 4 88 774,195 2,643 1,978 218,299 997,115
Balance at R-ZZE—ZTF
1 January 2010 —A—BN&R 774,195 2,643 1,978 218,299 997,115
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNR2ERA
income for the year ek - - - 49,342 49,342
Balance at R-ZE—TF
31 December 2010 +-A=+—H
B 4 8 774,195 2,643 1,978 267,641 1,046,457
Note: Bt et -
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature and HEZHEEREN BRAKAERZIME

purpose of reserves.

B
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17. Trade and Other Payables 17 ESZRHEMWENKIE
Group Company
A5E NN

31 December

2010

“E-EF

t=A=t-H

HK$000

T

Trade payables B oENTE 3,354,143
Other payables and accruals H {th FE 4 OB R FE T FB 357,086
Deferred income iF 139N 8,738

3,719,967

Less: Non-current deferred income i : JERENIEE WA (3,454)

(@  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to 90
days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as

3,716,513 3,061,306

follows:
0-60 days 0&60H
Over 60 days @60 H

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate to their fair
values due to their short-term maturities.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010

31 December 31 December 31 December

2009 2010 2009
T Sl o
t-A=+-5 [EEREREE

HK$’000 HK$'000

T FiE

2,735,012
324,304
6,660

3,065,976
4,670)

@ AEEZEHEEAKTAEEZE
EH N FI0E0H B 5 ENK
HZEREDTOT :

Group

A EE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—g-%F “ETNF
+=A=+-—H +-A=+—A8
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
3,307,467 2,639,542
46,676 95,470

3,354,143 2,735,012

b BMRESREHAIE ZFTEHE
NRENFREEEEAFEMRS -
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17. Trade and Other Payables continued) 17 ESZRHEMENKRE @
() The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were © EBEZhEMEMSHREBEBEBBEAT
denominated in the following currencies: HIE R E
Group Company
xE ARF

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010
—g-%% T3 -g-%%
t=A=+-H +=A=t-8
HK$’000 HK$°000
FER b FHT

HK$ BT 7,629
RVB AR 1,653,004 1,129,069
S$ FE T 154,242 76,941 -

Uss ey 1,597,774 1,404,308 -
THB s 302,561 190,282 -
RM i = 248,842

RP PrEE 1,303

(@) Included in other payables and accruals is an amount of 0 HtENKRBEREFHELES
HK$5,256,000 (2009: HK$2,508,000) which relates to non- £85,256,000/8 ;L ( — T F h, F:
deliverable foreign exchange forward contracts. The notional 2,508,000/ JT) A B4 1 8] 32 1+ H) &
amount of foreign exchange forward contracts has been EHEH - IEERMEAMNEEDR
disclosed in note 3.1(a). R 3T E -

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @
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Bt 7% R AR Y RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

18. Deferred Taxation

18. IESE i 18

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under BEERBEBNERBBEIREHEZESH
the liability method. 8
Movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: BELERIEEE/(AE) FHEEHOT
Group
RE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E2-2F —EENF
+=-—A=+-—H +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FiET
At 1 January/1 April R—A—B/MA—H 25,652 22,005
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated (1Bt AR AERER
income statement (Note 24) (K1 5E24) (6,326) 2,756
Dilution and partial disposal of a HE B AR I HER
subsidiary to an associate 5K BB = A7) (3,124) -
Exchange difference VE W =% 1,720 891
At 31 December Rt+-—_A=+—H 17,922 25,652
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FHRANNECHBEENABRBE
year/period are as follows: BT
Group
rE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZF ZETNEF
+=-—A=+-—H +=—A=+—H
Inventories and FEREZEWR HK$’000 HK$’000
trade receivables provisions RERE THET FAET
At 1 January/1 April w—A—8B/MA—H 36,802 26,959
Credited to the consolidated FFAREETmE
income statement 6,578 8,624
Dilution and partial disposal of HE — BB A T B8 R
a subsidiary to an associate [EID =1 /N
(Note 29(b)) (K1 &#29(b)) (3,403) -
Exchange difference [ N =58 2,031 1,219
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 42,008 36,802
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18. Deferred Taxation (continued)

19.

Accelerated tax depreciation

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

18. IEFERH I8 (&)

At 1 January/1 April

Charged to the consolidated

income statement

Dilution and partial disposal of
a subsidiary to an associate (Note 29(b))

Exchange difference

At 31 December

Group
A%
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
t=A=+-5 [EEEEEREE
MEBETE HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FHET
W—A—B/mMAB—H (11,150) (4,954)
RiEEBmRNK
(12,904) (5,868)
o — B R B2 R
158 PR /3 Bk i 2 B (Y 72 29(b)) 279 -
X E (811) (328)
R+=—A=+—H (24,086) (11,150)

Borrowings

19. & &

Group
r5E

Company
YN

31 December

31 December 31 December 31 December

2010 2010
—E-ZF —B-FF
+=A=t-A +=A=t-H
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i THET THET
Non-current ERE
Unsecured bank borrowings EEBRRITEE (a) 613,502 351,531
Secured bank borrowings BEBRTEE (b) - 132,000 132,000
Secured mortgage loan BERARBER () 34,978 38,542 -
Finance lease liabilties BEREEE d 1,624 823 -
650,104 522,896 132,000
Current nE
Unsecured bank borrowings BEEAFTEE (a) 986,720 700,746 -
Secured bank borrowings EEBERTEE (b) 132,000 132,000 132,000 132,000
Secured mortgage loan BEARIBER ©) 3,564 3,564 - -
Finance lease liabilities MEREEE (d 1,012 450 - -
1,123,296 836,760 132,000 132,000
Total borrowings miEe ) 1,773,400 1,359,656 132,000 264,000

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 35 3R &

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

B & (4R)

19. BOITOWingS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

()

(C)

Unsecured bank borrowings

The loans are unsecured and bear interests at rates as disclosed in
section (e) below. The loans are repayable within twelve months except
for syndicated loans amount of HK$613,502,000 (31 December 2009:
HK$351,531,000) which is repayable on 30 August 2013.

Secured bank borrowings

The term loan facility bears interest at HIBOR plus 2.0% and has a term of
three years commencing from the date of the Term Loan Facility
Agreement and repayable in five equal instalments started on 30
September 2009 with the remaining instalments repayable semi-annually.
The loan is secured by 51% shares of ECS Holdings Limited owned by
the Company.

Certain financial covenants of the secured bank borrowings of
HK$132,000,000 have not been complied with at the balance sheet date.
The repayment schedule under relevant agreements with bank remains
unaffected as a result of the breach of the covenants.

Secured mortgage loan
The loan is secured by a building with net book value of HK$63,457,000
as at 31 December 2010 (31 December 2009: HK$64,759,000).

Finance lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010
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@

(b)

()

(d)

EIEHEBITHEE
ERAEEFRETXHEEZME
APE - BERERI2EARNEIE  HRE
B 613,502,000 T(ZEZNF+ =
A =+—8 :351,531,000/8 7T) 8| A
—E-—FN\A=Zt+HEE-

FERRITEE

EHERBERBEERITAEZREM
20%:t B HREHERBRAE WA A H
RIARB=F S2HHUBESZHEE
B-BHER _ZFEThAFALA=+HE
T HBBARBERSLFEN - BEX
NARBEAEAMEERAARA
a7 51% I

2 K ¥ 48 17 1§ B 132,000,0007% JT K] &
FHBRENGEER Y BEYT - HIETT
WEEGEETHERSE R &R
ERZEMZENFE-

FEARBER
RZE—ZFF+_A=+—H BEX
£ BF ™% {8 /463,457,000 7T 2 1& F i
HEF(ZZEZAF+_A=+—8:
64,759,000/ 7T ) °

MEHENEE
HRENBHEEENENRBE T
HA BEHEEEEREER-



19. BorrOWingS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 &= ==

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R B = ()

19. BB )

TE+ =

R=+—BILFE

Notes: (continued) Wiat - (%)
(d)  Finance lease liabilities (continued) (d ®BERVEESE)
Group
KE
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-FF —EENE
+=A=+—8H +=—A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
Gross finance lease liabilities MEHEEREESE
— minimum lease payments: —HEMEERE:
Within 1 year —F R 589
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 1,062
1,651
Future finance charges on finance leases RMEREMNRKRBEZ T 378)
1,273
The present value of finance lease liabilities MEFREARED
is as follows: WEWT :
Within 1 year —£R" 450
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 823
1,273
() At 31 December 2010, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as e WH=-Z—ZF+=-B=+—R80 F5H
follows: EEENEENT
Group Company
AEE ARR
Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total Bank borrowings
BITEE MEHEEE ait BITEE
31 December 31 December  [RINDEEN T 31 December  [RIEDEIENIET 31 December  [RINDEE =g 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-%BF ZTTNEF —B-BF ZZThF —B-%F ZEThF —B-%BF ZTTNF
+=ZA=+-B TZA=1T-F e +=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEr T T T FHT FiEx FET
Within 1 year —£R 1,122,284 836,310 1,012 1,123,296 836,760 132,000 132,000
Between 1 and 2years — 4 EM4F 3,564 487,095 1,624 823 5,188 487,918 132,000
Between 2 and 5 years FEZE R E 624,194 10,692 - - 624,194 10,692 -
After 5 years BBAEF 20,722 24,286 = - 20,722 24,286 -
132,000 264,000

1,770,764 1,368,383 2,636 1,278 1,773,400 1,359,656

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

. [+ .
19. Borrowings (continueq) 19. B &)
Notes: (continued) Wiat - (%)
The effective interest rates were as follows: ERAMEQNT :
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZF —TTRF
t=A=+-8” tZA=t—H
Unsecured bank borrowings mIEPIRITEE 1.10%-5.10% 1.75%-5.12%
Secured bank borrowings BiIRFRTEE 2.11% 2.08%
Secured mortgage loan BEMFRBER 0.91% 0.83%
Finance lease liabilities MEHERRE 7.00% 8.00%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate to their fair values. EEMNFEOEREAFEES -
The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the following BEMETENATIEEE :
currencies:
Group Company
EME NG|

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2010 2010 2009
—E-BF Tz —Z-ZF —ZZETAF
+=A=+—8H TZA=1+—H0 et il=]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET FHT FHT

HK$ BT 170,542 306,106 132,000 264,000
RMB AR 163,032 143,006

S$ oo 9,235 51,152 -
us$ %7 1,229,423 617,071 -
THB e 201,168 124,466 _

= 117,855

1,773,400 1,359,656 132,000

RM B
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20. Turnover and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent with
the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this regard,
the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is the segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year/period is set out below.

(@)

Business segments

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

20.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

EXRERTHER

DEMEMDIZBAKREZ S BITRER
AERFEDRE ko afHEEIRE
EFMAEM—BZAAMER - A& H
ZERETHREBAERESS st
FOAKRBEZSETBRERBABRIAT
HEZERAZ2HROMEMEZEE

Yot I B ST HR A
REENRXD

DEWELENHER

H
[w=]
IEZEDES -

ANy aN

BEDBBENZFAETERD
BREER DSBS EGEMNER
EhZzHgMME R EMD A

> EB AR
quﬁ
17
ﬁ o

F/WRAEER R BRI B
FRAREHWEWT :

B
A
JiE)]
3

TEXBOBET

Segments Principal activities

ol FEEK

Distribution Distribution of IT products (desktop PCs, notebooks, tablets, handhelds, printers,
CPUs, hard disk, memory device, etc) for the commercial and consumer markets.

P! REAERHEEMSDHEAMRER(R LEH LA ER - FREK -

FREMK-

Enterprise systems

FTEDHE R pRiBas - B4R -

IREE) -

SE-EES

Provider of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,

databases, storage and security products) for IT infrastructure.

TERFEA EABEEMRENCERZRATAE(PREMY  BRIERS -
E-H#BERRLTER) HER-

IT services
services.

BRI RS BB ERRERT R®IT 5

Unix/NT R 7% g5 ~ 8UE

IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and support

A e R IERT -

BAZKRERLA Z-TEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

20. Turnover and Segment Information (ontinueq) 20.

(@ Business segments (continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2010 are

as follows:

Distribution

oK |

HK$’000

FRT

Total segment revenue 7 HP U AR 19,617,859

Segment results DEEE 361,520
Finance costs HKBERA

Share of associates’ profits

DB R RDE A

Enterprise

IT services
&
MR
HK$’000

TRET
139,428
6,618

systems

LERG
HK$’000
5
6,455,313

AEE
HK$’000
Fi87
26,212,600

172,858 540,996

(60,552)

480,444
29,919

Profit before taxation 4 %5 B g A 510,363
Taxation Rl (102,305)
Profit for the year FEREF 408,058
Reportable segment assets ARENHBEE 4,483,112 1,718,974 30,924 6,233,010
The segment results for the nine months ended 31 December BHE_ZZAF+-_HA=+—8H
2009 are as follows: WENBEAMDEEENT :
Enterprise
Distribution systems [T services Group
A
oK TERS R AR REE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHET FET
Total segment revenue D E A KR 14,632,381 4,954,181 119,135 19,705,697
Segment results DEBELE 306,091 135,049 6,815 447,955
Finance costs e (30,594)
417,361
Share of associates’ profits paklal AN bl 3,353
Profit before taxation T %53 Al Y 420,714
Taxation 18 (100,887)
Profit for the period s F 319,827
Reportable segment assets AmENBEE 3,806,444 1,429,810 34,733 5,269,987

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

20. Turnover and Segment Information (continued 20 EEBER D BER =
=

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss b) AHREDHEAHEER
and assets EEMNHER
Profit St A
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year/period in MR PEFEGEBERME
the consolidated income statement is not presented as the I EEHAREFAER - R &2
segment profit is the same as the profit for the year/period PER e BE R A D I0EF 8 FH
presented in the consolidated income statement. At Al B BR o

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—E-EF —EETNF
+=A=+-H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THEx FET

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AR E D EE E 6,233,010 5,269,987
Goodwill (RS 330,370 313,609
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMEEE = 1,612
Interest in associates BN R R RE S 252,005 40,877
Deferred tax assets FRERIBEEE 42,008 36,802
Other receivables and prepayments =N I DN SRR 32,866 278,101
Cash and cash equivalents BENBESEEY 1,015,251 450,840
Consolidated total assets HABEE 7,905,510 6,391,828

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

20. Turnover and Segment Information ontinuec) 20 EXEBERIHER @
(c) Geographical information ¢ HEER
The Group’s three business segments operate in three main AEEN=ZFBEBI>IBE ==
geographical areas: North Asia, Singapore and South East Asia Em@gE dbdn N KRR
excluding Singapore. T (TBEHME) -
1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
—HA—HA%Z MA—HB=
—E-EF —ETNF
+=—A=+—H +=-A=+—H”
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Revenue Wz
North Asia ik g8 18,766,450 13,001,747
Singapore 3o 1,755,190 1,148,052
South East Asia (excluding Singapore) WG (NEEFInE) 5,690,960 5,655,898
Total segment revenue 73 B 48 W 26,212,600 19,705,697
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer WaBREEFMELRE D -
is located.
31 December 31 December
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
+=HB=+—H +=-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FET
Assets BE
North Asia el 4,367,760 3,226,255
Singapore 7N 563,168 338,494
South East Asia (excluding Singapore) RE I (NEERMmE) 1,302,082 1,705,238
Reportable segment assets DEEEMEEE 6,233,010 5,269,987
Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the AMEDHEERBEEMEMDE -
assets are located.
Note: The Group’s Malaysia subsidiary, ECSB was listed on the Main Hat - MN—_ZE—ZTFWA+HEB  KEEEK
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities on 15 April 2010. It ceased to Tis M B A BIECSBE1TE X AHEE
be a subsidiary and became an associate of the Group and was MEERAGSEERSHAEREHT - H
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements upon its RERAREER  T~BABKEBNH
IPO. BRAIMKABE R RTERES

BB ER AR A AR o
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21. Other Gains, Net

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

21, W A

Interest income

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net fair value gain of derivative
financial instruments

Net exchange gain

Gain on dilution and partial disposal
of a subsidiary to an associate
(Note 29(b))

Other

1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E2-ZF —EENF
—A—HAZ mA—B=Z
—E-=ZF —ETNF
+=—A=+-—H +=—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
FEWA 7,678 974
Z (8 M= (322) 84
THEVBTENAFE
W F 58 771
P& 5 W e )5 58 773
& — K E AR B HER
R A& R A
(K1 7#29(b)) _
HAb 1,669
4,271

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 T —ZT &+ _A=+—HBILtFE

22. Operating Profit 22, &R
Operating profit is derived after charging the following: £ R A HBR AT Z B AT 1S
1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-FF —ETNEF
—HA—RB=#& MA—B=
—E—ZF —TENF
+=—A=+-—H +=-A=+—8H
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FET
Cost of inventories FEKAR 25,058,127 18,742,710
Staff costs, including BEIXNA(BREESTHE)
directors’ emoluments
— Salaries, allowance and welfare —%e  RMRREF 331,348 262,085
— Provident fund contributions —AHEEHK 44,336 28,614
Equity-settled share-based payment ARG 1D 2 14 2 #E a5 45 E 5008 86 2,300
Operating lease rentals in respect of MERERZKERERS
premises and warehouse 28,576
Auditors’ remuneration % S5 6D B 5,219
Depreciation of property, plant ME BENMREBITE
and equipment 12,544
Written off of available-for-sale WAL ER B EE
financial assets —
Provision for and written off of inventories 7{? BB K i 3,017
Provision for and written off of B FE IR SR T aE
trade receivables 15,005
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

23. Finance Costs 23. & H
1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZF ZETNEF
—A—B%& MA—B=E
—E-FF —TENEF
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—AR
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT FET
Interest expense on: THASEZFERE
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX 34 42
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EIKFIRITEE 25,418
— Secured bank borrowings —BIKMRITEE 5,027
— Secured mortgage loan —HBIRHIRBEE -
— Finance lease liabilities —REHEA®E 107
30,594
24. Taxation 24. BiIE
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement RireEmR MR 2 HRIB TS
represents:
1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZF TENF
—A—AE mA—-RE
—E-EF —ZEENF
+=-—H=+-—8 +—-A=+—8H
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FiET
Current taxation RHABE1E
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBEBFER 12,795 25,673
— Overseas taxation —/B N EiTE 83,898 75,640
Under-provision of Hong Kong BEFEEENNESHER
Profits Tax in prior years e 340 1,714
(Oven)/under-provision of BEFEBINGIE (B
overseas taxation in prior years B BETR (1,054) 616
Deferred taxation (Note 18) IRIER 1A (M3 18) 6,326 (2,756)
102,305 100,887

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @
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24. Taxation (continued)

24, i I8 ()

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (for the
nine months ended 31 December 2009: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the estimated

assessable profits for the year/period at rates of taxation prevailing in

the countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong

Kong as follows:

Profit before taxation

B 75 AT 4 A

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
Effect of different tax rates in

different tax jurisdictions
Income not subject to taxation
Expenses not deductible

for taxation purposes
(Over)/under-provision in prior years

Tax losses for which no deferred
tax assets were recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of withholding tax of
profit from the PRC subsidiaries

B E16.5% B 2 HH1H
TR R AR TR K
-

BARBZHB/A
REBmME TEIRZEAX

BEFEZ (B
=3

VEERELENREE
MR B 1R

ER AR RER 2 HIEE R

hENE LR SN EER
MR E

Taxation charge

BIAX
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HRNEBANESH IREE T —ZTF+
ZRA=1+—BIEFE ARG ERE T
165% (BE2—TThhF+-_A=+—
BiEAER : 16.5%) 12 o

BN IR F A 2 (kAT FE R B R
UAKERERMEBRREFOB R
o

AEBEBBAEN 2 HBEEERTER
KB 2BReBIEZREMT

1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to

31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—®-%F “TThE
—HB—HB% MA—HB=E
—E-%TF “FThF
t=A=+-58 IR
HK$’000 HK$’'000

TET FAET

510,363 420,714

84,210 69,418

4,233 12,139

(GZ10)] (704)

11,100 6,373

(714) 2,330

1,066 4,902

(809) (96)

3,859 6,525

102,305 100,887




25. Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the  25.
Company
The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2010 is dealt with in the financial statements
of the Company to the extent of HK$49,342,000 (for the nine month
ended 31 December 2009: HK$84,577,000).

26. Proposed Dividends Attributable to Equity 26.
Shareholders
The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 (for the nine months
ended 31 December 2009: HK$NIl).

27. Earnings Per Share 27.

Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$370,280,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009:
HK$276,333,000) and the weighted average of 1,258,889,000 shares (for
the nine months ended 31 December 2009: 1,158,146,000 shares) in

issue during the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

XAREREFEEAEML
s )

HE-_ZZ—ZF+_-_A=1+—HItHF
E RARREKEBEHTRERBZAQAER
#8 A JE 153 7 549,342,000 7T (B &
—EENFF+ A=+ —HIEAER:
84,577,0007 7T) °

b

RRERSEARGRE

FEEVTIArEBREE T —ZTF+=
A=+—BLEFERTRARKRE (B =
—ZFAE+-_A=+—HIth@A:
') o

BERER

2R

AEESRELABFDRARA#EER
# H A FE{h 4 370,280,000 7T ( #
E-ETAE+-_A=+—RHA 1IN
A 1 276,333,000 70) LA R B TR H
2 N RE 15 #01,258,889,000 )% (& & —
TEEAE+_A=+—BIth@A:
1,158,146,000% ) i 5+ & °

1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-EF —EETNF
—B—HZ mMA—B=E
—E-EF —ETNF
+=ZA=+—-H +-A=+—A~
Issued ordinary shares R—A—8/MWA—H
at 1 January/1 April (thousands) BITEBRKR (T 1,258,889 1,091,239
Issue of ordinary shares (thousands) BITE B (T — 66,907
Weighted average number of ordinary R+—_A=+—H
shares at 31 December (thousands) (F3hH) 1,258,889 1,158,146
Basic earnings per share ERERAF
(HK cents per share) (FRAEW) 29.41 23.86
BHERBRAF T-TFFR

&
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

27. Earnings Per Share (continued) 21. BRE M
Diluted 8
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based on AEFEZERBBRANDEARAQNRER
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of A A JE 5% F370,280,0005% 7t (& &
HK$370,280,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009: —ZEERAF+-A=+—AHLENA@EA:
HK$276,333,000) and the weighted average number of shares of 276,333,0007% 7T ) K& B 17 o0 # F 19 &
1,262,700,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009: 1,262,700,000% (B Z —ZEZENEFE+ = A
1,160,351,000 shares), calculated as follows: =+—H1EAMEA :1,160,351,000 %) 5+
CRUNNE
1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E2-ZF —ETNEF
—HA—B% MA—B=E
—E—ZF —EENF
+=A=+-—H +=A=+—8
HK$°000 HK$’000
TERT FiET
Weighted average number of ordinary BETEBRMETEH
shares in issue (thousands) (F3&hH) 1,258,889 1,158,146
Adjustment for assumed conversion RERE IR 2
of share options (thousands) (F&DH) 3,811 2,205
Weighted average number of STEEREERTN Z EEE
ordinary shares for diluted earnings hntEF 8 (FE)
per share (thousands) 1,262,700 1,160,351
Diluted earnings per share % 58 & R
(HK cents per share) (5 R AL) 29.32 23.81
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28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EERESREEEMNS
Emoluments
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ EZEZME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RE/HANERKENFARAE
Directors of the Company during the year/period are as follows: EzMeBmBERAT
1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
—A—BZ MA—B=E
—E-ZF —ZEENF
+=—BA=+-—8H +=ZA=+—H”
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Fees e 323 242
Other emoluments H b B &
— Basic salaries and housing —EXHEREERRN
allowances 8,220
— Discretionary bonus —BEIELL 800
— Contributions to pension scheme —RIRETEI R 280
— Equity-settled share-based —B Mtz
payments HEHE IR -
9,542
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 ¥R 2R Bt & (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREANEEEMNSE

Emoluments «continueq) (4%)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @Q EE=EMe @
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 REBE=2_ZE—ZTF+_A=+—
December 2010 is set out below: BEFE SESZ2ME&E W

T~

Basic Equity-
salaries and Contribution settled

housing Discretionary  to pension share-based

Name of Director allowance bonus scheme payment

AR 43 % 13

EEXFHFER RINGTE ZRBEE
e we EEE WAL & IR &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THERT THERT THERT THER

Executive Directors HITESE

Li Jialin FEM 5,200 5,985
Tay Eng Hoe B 5k A 3,223 12,756
Ong Wei Hiam, William TEN 1,181 1,595
Chan Hoi Chau = 618 930
Mao Xianggian ESEE] 2,252 3,806

Independent non-executive Directors Y7 JEEITE =
Chan Po Fun, Peter IR & 2 120
Ni Zhenwei fRiRfE 100
Li Wei e 100

12,166 25,392

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010



28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (continued)

(@)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of each Director for the nine months ended 31
December 2009 is set out below:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5 (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

2. EERNSREEEMS

Basic salaries

and housing

Name of Director Fees allowance
EAHe R

e we RFEEM

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

(%)

(@

EEME 2

RBE-FTAE+-A=1—
HIEAER SEE2BE 50
T

Contribution Equity-settled

Discretionary to pension  share-based
bonus scheme payment Total

ARS A7 32 A
RIRETE 2HEREE

BB IEAL =% 4 ] axt
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET TR FET

Executive Directors WiITE=S
Li Jialin Z(EM — 4,000 300 215 — 4,515
Tay Eng Hoe B 5k A 2 1,833 - 17 — 1,852
Ong Wei Hiam, William TEI - 904 200 9 - 1,113
Chan Hoi Chau B 7 M — 453 300 9 — 762
Mao Xianggian ERA - 1,030 — 30 — 1,060
Independent non-executive Directors B 7 JEH T E
Chan Po Fun, Peter bR %5 90 - - - - 90
Ni Zhenwei RIRE 75 - - - - 75
Li Wei FE 75 - - - - 75
242 8,220 800 280 — 9,642

Directors’” emoluments disclosed above include approximately
HK$320,000 (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009:
HK$240,000) paid to independent non-executive Directors.

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office during the year (for the nine months ended 31
December 2009: HK$NIl).

During the year, no Director of the Company waived any
emoluments (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009:
HKSNIl).

FXFBRECEEMeRESIH
T %8 3L FE 1T E = £9320,0007% T
(BEZZZAF+=ZA=+—H
1E AV A 2 240,000 7T) ©

F AL MR £t A £ 3 E o] B
EBE_ZETAFT_A=+—
BIEAEA: &) FRBERSE
MAREE L BEMANE B R
ZERB A RRERAE -

RER - ARAE R ERE RN

FaHE(BE-_EEAF+=A
=t+—RIENAEA: 8-

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 i Z - —ZT&F+ A=+ —HILFE

28. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREAREEEMNSE

Emoluments (continued) (%)

(b) Five highest paid individuals b)) EEESHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the REBEFAZREHZRHALTE
Group for the year included three (for the nine months ended 31 BR=AHEHEZZTTNF+ZA=
December 2009: two) Directors whose emoluments are reflected +—HIEALEA - MB)ES &
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the ECMEEREXRES 2D M
remaining two (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009: FRE RERAZNN T HEBRME
three) individuals during the year are as follows: (BT h&F+=-A=+—H

EAEA: =Z=RB)ALZHEWT

1 January 2010 1 April 2009

to to

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—E-EF —EETNF

—HA—HA%Z MA—HB=

—E-EF —ETNF

+=RA=+—-H +-A=+—A8

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FET FAET

Basic salaries and allowances BEXRE o MER 3,086 5,624
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT 7,366 836

Contributions to pension schemes RARET B3R 672 406

11,124 6,866

The emoluments fell within the following bands: B T 5 E

Number of individuals
AH

Emolument band & & 1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—z-%F —ETNF
—A—HBZ mMA—B=E
—z-%F —ETNF
+=—RA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAET
1
y
y

HK$1,500,001 —HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000 7T
HK$2,000,001 —HK$2,500,000 2,000,001;87T,%2,500,000/% 7T,
HK$3,000,001 —HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 71, 23,500,000/ 7T
HK$5,000,001 —HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T.%5,500,00078 7T
HK$5,500,001 —HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T, 26,000,00075 7T
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 75 R 2R BfY R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

2. MEBRERERKRMFE

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash @ KBRBAENELCEmESE
generated from operations ZREFHEEHEK
1 January 2010 1 April 2009
to to
31 December 2010 31 December 2009
—E-=ZF —ETNEF
—HA—B% MA—B=E
—E-EF —EENF
+=A=+-—8H t-A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Profit before taxation % B3 Bi s A 510,363 420,714
Interest income B WA (7,678) (974)
Interest expense B X2 H 60,552 30,594
Depreciation of property, plant ME BELRERE
and equipment 15,475 12,544
Share of associates' profits pal RN bl (29,919) (3,353)
Equity-settled share-based LARR 17 2 1+ 2 2w
payment EE IR 86 2,300
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE KBE & 2
plant and equipment 2B (W) (84)
Written off available-for-sale 88 AT 4 i B RS
financial assets BE -
Gain on dilution and partial disposal of ~ H & —E KB 2 7 285
a subsidiary to an associate FE 25 16 B A B
NE] (52,075) —
Operating profit before working LIEESEIA 2
capital changes £ A 497,924 461,741
Changes in working capital LEEeE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H A fE YR (557,130) (867,624)
Inventories rE (451,379) (471,014)
Trade and other payables B 5 N E b e & 769,079 1,034,217
Net cash generated from operations RIS & %58 258,494 157,320

BAZKRERLA
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Bt 7% R AR Y RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2010 # =T — =

29. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(continued) (%)

(b) Dilution and partial disposal of a subsidiary to an b)) HE
associate {3 PR A Bk
On 15 April 2010, the Group’s subsidiary, ECSB issued R-T—
28,000,000 new ordinary shares at RM1.46 per share in
connection with its listing on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia
Securities. Subsequently, the Group disposed of 7,200,000
shares in ECSB at the same price and ECSB ceased to be a
subsidiary on that date as the Group’s interest was reduced to 27,200,000 f& B 17
40%. Detail of the dilution and partial disposal of ECSB are as T &R D E40% -
follows: BARERK
Property, plant and equipment M- WE MK
Inventories r&E
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEENBEE
Deferred tax assets BEERIBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b JE Y TR IA
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEED
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk HE A ER FRIA
Borrowings BE
Taxation payable FE T HL I8
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE
Non-controlling interests of subsidiary P A Al 2 JEIE R R
Fair value adjustment N EAE
Net identifiable assets AR EEFE
Non-controlling interests QFT % HE 2
Dilution and partial disposal of net identifiable AEBEEEEREESL D TER

assets attributable to the Group BEFE
De-recognition of translation reserve BUB MR M A FiR

F+-A=t+—BILEE

29. MEB &

B WK

—H |3ﬁ e NI i

** /'\

TENF+AH AEHE
Bi/E A EECSBRL EE B AR
5 P = Rk £ 70 2% 7728,000,000 i% &
BEESE146 T 2 LR -
% A5 @ LA AR R (B 15 ) 5 ECSB

3

EARKE A
ECSBR® & H T

i) PNCIRE: 3 9N 8-

DHEECSBEHBAT

31 December 2010
=
+=—B=+—H
HK$’000

FHR

8,082
194,287
145
3,403
379,529
56,959
(289,724)
(121,654)
(7,659)
(279)
(14,805)

208,284
61,761

270,045
(108,018)

Gain on dilution and partial disposal of equity
shareholdings in ECSB

Transfer of remaining 40% interest in
ECSB to interest in associates

BE N EECSBEL D AR HE 2
U #&
BEECSBi#R N 40% 2

WD 2

162,027
(2,974)

52,075

(186,046)

25,082
(56,959)

Consideration received for disposal of U B S ECSBIE 1D 2
shares in ECSB, satisfied in cash KRE (ARSI
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEReEEEEEEY

Net cash outflow W& FER D

(31,877)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 7% R 2% Bt 5F (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 - —Z&+_-_A=+—HILLFE

30. Commitments Under Operating Leases 30 REHEE N 2 &L
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had future aggregate minimum RZE-—ZFFEF+-_A=+—H &%
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: BEBEFAATHME 2 CEBEMAEZ B&

=EMSETENT

31 December 31 December
2010 2009
—z-—Tf —ETnE
+=A=+-—~H +-A=+—8
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Within 1 year —FE R 25,283 31,389
Between 2 and 5 years MEZERF 29,284 27,793
54,567 59,182
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and items AEBAZEAMERKERNTEE 2B
of plant and machinery and office equipment held under operating BEREMEBAZREERBEA -BHZ
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years, MEPFHR—RE—ZE=F TJEEEH
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. WEHFERABER -BEROBEX

None of the leases includes contingent rentals. RS -

BHERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt & (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 B2 =T —ZT &+ _-_A=+—HILFE

31. Related Party Transactions S1.EAEALIRS

The following transactions were carried out with related parties: UTARBEE@EEANTHITIRS

(a) Director’s quarter @ ZEZES
The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour REBBHEARAEFRNTES
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin, the TEMETE B E B E Z A R Joint
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company is a major Honour Development Limited 5t — & &
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the EEEL—EHHEHERRE  RE
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$200,000 to ZhE AEEREE—_ZT %
Joint Honour Development Limited for the year ended 31 F+ = A=+ —A8 I F E [Joint
December 2010 (for the nine months ended 31 December 2009: Honour Development Limited 3 1<+ A
HK$200,000). 72000008 T(Z BT NF+ = A

=+—HBI1- @A : 200,00087T) °

(b) Key management compensation (including the by TEEBAEHMES(ERE
amounts disclosed in note 28) PA B 5E 28 3 5 2 SR IE)

1 January 2010 1 April 2009

to to

31 December 2010 31 December 2009

—E-FF —ETNF

—HA—B=Z% MA—B=E

—E2-2F —EENF

+=—A=+-—A~ +=ZA=+—8H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FiET

Short-term employment benefits HEEEREA 60,879 22,325
Other long-term employment benefits HEkEBHEERF 1,041 1,171

61,920 23,496
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
Bf 75 3R 2% Bt 5F (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2010 2 =T — T &+ A=+ —HILFE

32. Possible Impact of Amendments, New 32.
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the year ended 31 December

ok — H
ol I
W Kt

:ull'l_H-_mAHH'
%
B2 U+

R
3| N 48
A
WE =R

a0 1o 11 B
\j

&)
2010 BE
@
(=]
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has BEAMKREFAE 5t
issued a number of amendments and Interpretations and one new fiAeBEREE—_ET—ZEF+—-8
standard which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December T+ —HIEFEE AL R AN R R AT
2010 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. BRERMN Y EFEIIRBREUNR—E
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group: HYER - BIELA T ALl AR EFE BB E -
Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
BUTHERZ%
R ETT IR EX
Revised HKAS 24, Related ARG ER L 245 (CIEFT) 1 January 2011
4% 55 =
party disclosures FARE 7 3 5% —T——%—A—H
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments BB HRELERNEIN /T A 1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 —E-TERBYBRELER 1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011
B o4 —E-FF+H—H
F_F——F—-H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, B ERE125E (BT A) 1 January 2012
Income taxes HriE 8 —E-——%—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the AEBEETHLESETRERNERS
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial MeBiig& - 25 R HHESE
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely EITNKATRE I NGB 2 S EE R
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and MAERERLE -

financial position.

BHAERERLIE —T-ZTFEFH @



Financial Summary

BB E

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out below:

AEBBETEVREREZXEANREESR

BEMEHIOT

Sz i
Results 4
Nine months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December Year ended 31 March
2009 2009 2008 2007
(E_TTNE
—A=+-R BE=A=+-HLFE
IENEA —TENF —TENF TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET FET FET FET
Turnover BEH 26,212,600 19,705,697 22,091,272 12,350,522 4,236,829
Profit before taxation B 73 BT 35 ) 510,363 420,714 318,414 329,263 195,594
Taxation FiE (102,305) (100,887) (56,605) (69,710) (34,261)
Profit for the year/period E /R 408,058 319,827 261,809 259,553 161,333
Attributable to: LU AL FE4h
Equity shareholders of AREIRERFBA 370,280 276,333 231,624 244,743 161,333
the Company
Non-controlling interests  3F 1% & 4 %5 37,778 43,494 30,185 14,810 -
408,058 319,827 261,809 259,553 161,333
Assets and Liabilities >
EEHAEE
As at As at
31 December 31 December As at 31 March
2009 2009 2008 2007
R-TBhE R=A=t—H
+-A=1+—8 —EZENF —TTN\F TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT FAT FAT FHT FAT
Total assets BEE 7,905,510 6,391,828 4,755,011 5,095,669 773,901
Total liabilities HwaRE (5,579,178) (4,494,639)  (3,403,719)  (3,906,095) (354,808)
Total equity B 2,326,332 1,897,189 1,351,292 1,189,574 419,093
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VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Unit 3312, 33/F
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